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Mirada plc

Chairman’s Statement

The 15 month pertod under review was dominated by negotiations leading to the restructuring of the Group The
conclusion was an mmportant strategic acqusition of Fresh Interactive Technologies S A (“Fresh”) and a fund
raising of £12 8 mlhon to strengthen the Group’s balance sheet, to provide working capital, to mvest in new
products and services as well as assist in financing the proposed international expansion

As part of the negohation process, the Board prepared a detailed plan to restructure and improve the method of
trading This plan included cost savings, the improvement of the Group’s sales structure, focusing activities on
busmess-to-business (“B2B”) instead of business-to—consumer (“B2C”) transactions, inplementing a successful
transition to a product based strategy, and expansion into the international market place The plan has in the main
since been implemented and the Directors foresee the resulting benefits flowmng through to the mcome statement
dunng the year ending 31 March 2009

As part of the restructuring and following on from the valuation of the Group ansing from the refinancing, a review
was made of the carrying values of the goodwill held on the balance sheet The result of the review was to 1mpair
the goodwill by £12 mullion

Financial Overview

For the 15 months ended 31 March 2008 the continuing operations of the Group showed a loss before mterest, tax,
depreciation, amortisation, restructuring and share-based payment charges of £4 46 mllion compared to a £0 54
mulhion loss 1n the year ended 31 December 2006 A significant part of this movement relates to the fact that in 2006
there was a one-off credit to cost of sales of £1 7 nullion it relation to a negotiated reduction i contractual
liabihities relating to bandwidth and transnussion costs

In addition, two major factors contributed to thus deterioration Furstly, the management focus on the refinancing
and restructuning of the Group, and secondly the sigmficant uncertainty which existed in our commercial sector
concerning the Group’s financial viability Consequently, it 1s only since the completion of the acqusition of Fresh,
the refinancing and the subsequent restructuring of the management team, that significant commercial opportunties
that were 1n negotiation during the period under review were 1n fact consummated

Loss before interest, tax, depreciation, amortisation, restructuring and share-based payment charges 15 a
performance measure used mternally by management to manage the operations of the Group and removes the
impact of one off and non-cash items (see note 6 of the financial statements for a reconciliation of this measure to
statutory captions)

After deducting depreciation, amortisation, restructunng and share based payment charges, the retained loss for the
period equalled £20 56 nullion (2006 £26 63 muliion) Future results will no longer include such large one-off and
non-cash expenses, because the Directors consider that no further wnpairment of goodwilt will be necessary, the
Group has repaid all loans which mcurred high financing fees and that as at 31 March 2008 the Group had
substantially completed its restructuring

As outlined in the CEO’s statement, the Group has structured uself into four business umts Gamung, Media, Touch
and Connect As this change onty occurred afier the February 2008 refinancing, the following reviews will cover the
divisions reviewed in previous annual reports

Games & Gambling

The net profit for this division equalled £1 66 mulhion compared to £2 01 rllion 1n 2006 The major reason for this
decrease was the fall in the net income recorded by the fixed odds garming business from £2 46 mulhion in 2006 to
£1 30 mullion This decrease was largely offset by the improvement in the profit recorded n the Group’s B2B
gamung business which was a result of the Group’s change mn focus from 1ts own brand to concentrating on
becomung a supplier to other brand owners Management expect this improvement n the Group’s B2B gamung
business to continue 1n the coming years
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Chairman’s Statement

Interactive Services

Gross profit has reduced to £3 1 mllion in the 15 months ended 31 March 2008 from £4 7 muihion 1n 2006 Taking
into account the impact of the £1 7 mullion reduction 1n contracted habilities, the underlymng trading has remamed
constant

Dating

In December 2007 the Group disposed of its 100% shareholding n Yoomedia Dating Group Ltd for a cash
consideration of £250,000 In September 2007 the Group placed Finlaw 532 Ltd (which traded under the name
Avenues) mto recervership These two transactions have given nise to a profit on dispesal/liquidation of £576,000
The Group no longer operates n the dating sector

First time adoption of IFRS

These are the Group’s first financial statements to be reported under International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS™) As part of the transition fo IFRS the directors were requuired to restate the 31 December 2006 balance
sheet and mcome statement During the work performed for the transition to IFRS, the directors also conducted a
review of the carrying values of major assets and habilities held in the balance sheet and 1dentified any possible
adjustrments which were needed to be made agamst these carrying values Reconciliations and explanatory notes on
how the transition to IFRS and the UK GAAP adjustments have affected profit and net assets previously reported
under UK Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“UK GAAP”) are included m note 32

One of the major changes n presentation required under IFRS 1s that revenues from fixed odds gaming must no
lenger be shown gross of custormner winmings The result 1s that the revenue and cost of sales recogmsed m the
income statement for the 15 months ended 31 March 2008 and the year ended 31 December 2006 have been
reduced by £43 6 rullion and £43 5 mllion respectively

February restructuring

On 25 February 2008, the Company announced that all the resolutions relating to the restructuring had been passed
Full details of these resolutions are mcluded n the circular dated 31 January 2008 wiich 1s available on the Group
website www murada tv

The mam resolutions included

-  The Company’s name being changed to Mirada ple,

- £8 37 mullion raised via the placing of ordinary shares for cash,

- The acquisition of Fresh for shares Immediately prior to the completion of the acquisition, Fresh had received an
equity cash mvestment of €6 million from Barings Private Equity Partners Espana S A,

- Convertible loans owed by the Group totalling £5 21 mmullion being converted into ordinary shares, and

- A share capital reorganisation

The restructuring has resulted in the Group’s net asset position bemng substantially improved compared to the balance
sheet reported 1n the 31 December 2007 intenim statement This improvement arose from

- The Group recerving £12 8 million m cash from both the placing and the cash held by Fresh,
- The conversion of the convertible loans, and
- Goodwill ansing from the acquisition of Fresh

The Group now has a strong balance sheet and once again, management can focus 100% of their efforts on trading
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Chairman’s Statement

Board changes

As part of the restructuning, José Lwis Vazquez and Rafael Martin Sanz were appomted to the Board on 25 February
2008 José Lwis Vazquez has taken the position of Chief Executive Officer On the same date Jeremy Fenn and John
Swingewood stepped down from the Board and I became part-tume Executive Chairman

On 27 March 2008 1t was announced that Neil MacDonald had resigned from the Board and from s posiion as
Chief Operating Officer

Outlook

The constraints we had previously expenienced in being able to leverage our techmcal expertise and exploit
opportunities in our market place have now been removed Subject to there being no major changes to market
conditions there 15 no reason why results i the future should not reflect this new reality

Michael Sinclair
Chairman
29 July 2008
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report

The past five months, following the acquisition of Fresh, have been both exciting and encouraging The new
management team has made excellent headway with a changed strategic plilosophy and a carefully designed
turnaround plan towards a healthier financial position The people skills born from the combination of YooMedia
and Fresh, provided a foundation to enable the emergence of Mirada as a future leader mn its mche sector

Management systems

An mtial aim was to umfy and mamtain strict management reporting and tracking controls thus enabling
management to carefully track the profitability of the different areas of the Group Graham Duncan, Chief Financial
Officer, who jomed the Group approximately 12 months ago, has been integral to this process, co-ordinating his
efforts with the business development managers and the new Chief Technical Officer, José Gozalbo

The tumaround plan, created and carefully studied during the months prior to the merger and fully aligned with the
objectives of both old and new investors, has been pivotal to the first months’ activity Central costs have been cut
and a reshaping of certain activities has served to dramatically improve the financial health of the Group Every
expense and investment made has been subject to critical review to ensure that they are onented towards a clear
objective of efficiency The Board believes there 1s more that can be done, further areas of cost reduction have been
dentified and will be implemented without compromuse to the goal of growing profitability Indeed, the Directors
have been encouraged to see the different areas of the Group evolving as a cohesive unit with the same vision
shared by management and staff alike

The emergence of a skilled and motivated team requires further mention The new Vice President of Sales and
Business Development, Aldo Campinos, has shown great success mn boosting sales potential with a focus on
mnternational distribution capabihiies, with new Gamung and Media Directors, Paul Marchong and Antonio
Redriguez, offering great expertise in their respective areas Additionally, the synergies between Mirada and Fresh
have been clearly demonstrated during the past months with the Group’s operating centres mn Exeter, London,
Madnd and Milan working closely on development and distnbution of products and services

As part of the turnaround plan, the Group’s London operations will move to a single site n Wapping, which, from
the end of July 2008, will become Mirada’s head office

Following the review of the management systems, several Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”) have been
identified These will be used 1n assessing the financial performance of the Group and its four business units The
mam KPIs mnclude

e  Operational margins of the business umts after the allocation of research and development costs and
central overheads,

e The return on investment of the nternal development costs incurred mn the creation of 1ts new product
portfolio, and

*  The increase 1n margins generated through product distribution and international sales

These KPIs will enable management to understand on a timely basis areas where the Group 15 surpassing
expectations and, just as importantly, areas which may be underperforrmng This will allow the Group to focus 1ts
efforts on maximsing 1ts earnings

Strategic Vision
There are three key elements dniving the future of Mirada

¢ An aim to produce the best quality products for the mteractive audiovisual market, complemented with a
high level of after market support,

¢ The creation of a strong sales and business development team to generate global parinership agreements
and to support the international product distribution, and

*  Contmued integration of the four business umts (Media, Garng, Touch and Connect) over a common
platform, capable of collecting interaction experience, creating knowledge and improving the service
expenence on offer to customers
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report

The Dwectors hold the view that the audiovisual and technology services sector, suffers from a lack of
differentiation and low barners to entry Consequently, lugh competition, low margins and reduced overseas
business opportumties have become endemic amongst Mirada’s competition

The Directors’ aim 15 the generation of products based on the valuable assets and IP now owned by the Group and
the 1dentification of the market trends based upon close relationships with some of the leading customer groups 1n
Europe As already mentioned, the creation of an international busmmess development team demonstrates the
Board’s commutment to imcreasing sales into Europe and the rest of the world Our product-based strategy wll give
the Group an advantage over many of its competitors due to the fact that, as the products have already been
developed, we can meet the customer needs on a more timely basis This will enable the Group to achieve 1ts
anticipated increase n revenues without any compromuse to the margins earned

The Directors are pleased to see an out performance on mnternal targets and recently a new office in Milan was
opened providing the means for further international growth The Group has opened doors into a range of potential
customer groups throughout the world but notably the Middle East, South East Asia, Latin Amenca and Western
and Eastemn Europe

As mentioned above, the Group has now structured 1itself into 4 business units
Mirada Gaming

Our gamuing business umt 15 dedicated to the provision of products and services for the garmng market, with special
focus on the creation of mult:channel content and technology for the major on-line Gamung players n the market

The Group’s product development team 1s working on the development of a new generation of gamung products for
the Group’s key customers These products are bemng designed to enable the user to access games via the most
relevant devices, PCs with broadband internet access, mobile phones and via digital TV set-top-boxes Qur aim 1s
sell these products across the global market These products wall be show cased on Mirada's nteractive gaming
channel, Monte Carlo Roulette, which 1s broadcast on Sky channel 863 This channel wall enable the Group to test
new products and demonstrate the capabilities of these products to potential customers

Mirada Media

The Media division addresses the needs of the different players 1n the audiovisual value-chain, digital TV providers,
broadcasters and content producers Our main products are oriented to the navigation and commerciahisation of
content on the pay TV platforms, and to providing mteractive products and services for customers who have their
own channels and content, for example NHS or ITV

For the Media business umt, customers have been providing encouraging feedback about the Group's enhanced
Video-on-Demand products The revitahsation of the Group’s studios at Wapping has served to generate new
profitable agreements, based on the usage of our facilihies and technical support for customers using the production
capabihties Ths 1s only one example of newly identified revenue streams from the appropnate monetisation of the
valuable resources within the Group

Mirada Touch

Mirada’s Touch business umt provides products and services for the nteractive advertising market Touch’s
customers are brands and interactive agencies As the business umit’s current activities are the provision of mobile
phone marketing services 1n the hughly competiive UK market, 1t 1s the objective of the management to expand mnto
the overseas market and focus on new product-based strategy
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report

Mirada Connect

The Connect busmess umit comprses the Group’s transactional actrvities including agreements with APCOA, NCP
and Meteor, the 3 largest parking services providers m the UK Having solved the required technical integration
steps, early revenues cormung from the cashless mobile parking technologies used tnals taking place in two of
Meteor’s London Midland tram station car parks are surpassmg our imtial expectations Gomg forward,
management believe that the Group’s mnternational focus could lead to the Connect business expanding nto other
countries, especially as extsting customers do have a presence in the overseas market place

Outlook

There has been a significant transformation over the last year in the Group’s shareholder structure We have skilled
core mvestors helping the management team, both financially and commercially, and providing huge support to our
mternational expansion Indeed trading over the past few months show clear progress towards our financial
objectives

The Mirada brand 1s gaining recogmition 1n the UK, Europe and further afield With a keen eye on margin growth
and continued commutment to skilled personnel m technology development, sales and operations, the Directors
believe they can profitably exploit the lughly positive reception the Group has received from existing and potential
customers
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Directors’ Report

The directors present their annual report and the audsted financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2008

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Group are the development, provision and operation of mteractive TV and wireless
mobile services meluding messaging, games and ganung Additionally, the Group operates withun the public sector
n the UK as a provider of publc service mteractive TV and wireless mobile products

The subsichary and associated undertakings principally affecting the losses or net assets of the Group in the period
are listed 1 note 18 to the financial statements

Review of business and future developments

On 25 February 2008 the Group completed its restructuring which consisted of a refinancing and the acquisition of
Fresh To enable shareholders to understand the impact of these transactions on the balance sheet of the Group the
Board decided to extend the financial period from the year ended 21 December 2007 to the 15 months ended 31
March 2008

The comparative amounts included in the income statement, consohdated statement of recogmised ncome and
expense, consolidated cash flow and their related notes are for the year ended 31 December 2006 This means the
current period results will not be entirely comparable to the prior period

Reviews of the business, its results, future direction and key performance indicators are mcluded n the Chairman’s
Statement on pages 2 to 4 and the CEO’s Report on pages 5 to 7

Change of name

The Company changed its name from Yoomedia plc to Mirada plc on 26 February 2008

Results and divadends

The consolidated Group mcome statement for the period 1s set out on page 21 No dividend 1s declared in respect of
the peniod

Principal risks and uncertainties

When the Board considers business risks going forward, the prominent risks include our dependence on people, the
mteractive services and garmmng markets, and information technology

Dependence on people

The Group recogruses the value of their commutment and 1s conscious that we must keep the reward systems, both
financial and motivational, 1n place to mummse this area of risk Our share option schemes and nvestments
training are examples of this

Interactive services and gaming markets

The sectors mn which the Group operates may undergo rapid and unexpected changes or not develop at a pace 1 line
with the Board’s expectations It 1s possible therefore that either competitors will develop products simular to the
Group or 1ts technology may become obsolete or less effective The Group’s success depends upon 1its ability to
enhance 1ts products and technologies and develop and introduce, on a timely and cost effective basis, new products
and features that meet changing customer requirements and incorporate technological advancements As a result the
Group continues to invest significantly in research and development

Information technology

Data secunity and busmess continuity pose inherent nisks for the Group The Group mvests in and keeps under
review formal data securnty and business continuity policies
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Directors’ Report

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's activities expose it to a number of financial nisks including credit nisk, foretgn currency exchange nsk,
mterest rate risk and hquidity nsk The management of financial risk 1s governed by the Group's policies approved
by the board of directors, which provide wnitten principles on the use of financial denvatives to manage these rnisks

Credit Risk

The Group has a small exposure to credit nsk from credit sales It 15 the Group’s policy to assess the credit nsk of
new customers before entenng into contracts Historically, bad debts across the Group have been low

Foreign currency exchange risk

The majonty of cash at bank 15 held in Sterhing and Euro accounts There are also trade balances in these currencies
As these currencies are now the Group’s functional currencies, the Group has not entered into any forward exchange
contracts Any foreign gains or losses are recogmsed m the income statement

Interest rate risk

The Group 1s cash posifive and places its balances on short-term deposits with highly regarded financial institetions
Changes 1n mterest rates will affect the return on cash balances The Group does not hold or 1ssue derivative
financial instruments

Liquduty risk

During the period, in order to mamtain hquidity to ensure that sufficient funds are available for ongomg operations
and future developments, the Group had used a mixture of long-term and short-term debt finance

Research and development

Durning the 15 months ended 31 March 2008, due to the linmted funds available and management effort being
concentrated on the refinancing and restructuring of the business, the Group cut back on 1ts research and
development activity This has led to no research and development costs bemng capitalised as intangible assets
duning the period

Since completion of the refinancing and the acquisition of Fresh on 25 February 2008, the Group now has the
financial and physical resources to focus upon extensive research and development This will help the Group to
achieve 1ts strategic vision of producing the best quality products for the audio visual market and to expand nto the
international market place
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Directors’ Report

Directors and their interests

The directors who held office during the period are given below

Executive directors

Dr Michael Sinclawr Chairman

Mr José-Lwis Vazquez Chief Executive Officer (appointed 25 Febrary 2008)
Mr Neil MacDonald (resigned 27 March 2008)

Mr John Swingewood {resigned 25 February 2008)

Non-execufive directors

Richard Blake
Rafael Martin Sanz (appomnted 25 February 2008)
Jeremy Fenn (resigned 25 February 2008)

The mterests of directors m the shares of the Group at 31 March 2008 are disclosed 1n the Directors® Remuneration
Report on pages 16 and 17

Substantial shareholdings

At 17 July 2008 the following shareholders held, directly or indirectly, three per cent or more 1nterests 1n the 1ssued
share capital of the Company

Number of Percentage of
ordinary 1ssued ordinary
£1 shares share capital

Kase1 2000 S L 4,799,259 24 2%
Naropa Capital S L 3,818,589 193%
Baring Private Equity Partners Espaiia S A 3,899,830 19 7%
Hanover Nominees Ltd 2,618,391 13 2%
T Hoare Nomunees Ltd 2,142,859 10 8%
Fresh Inversiones S L 1,180,242 6 0%

Polhitical and charitable contributions

The Group made no political or charnitable contnbutions during the peniod

Creditor payment policy and practice

The Group’s policy 15 that payments to supphers are made in accordance with those terms and conditions agreed
between the Group and 1ts supphers, provided that all trading terms and conditions have been comphed with At 31
March 2008, the Group had an average of 66 days purchases outstanding 1n trade creditors (2006 131 days)

.10 -
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Employee involvement and disabled employees

Employees of the Group are regularly consulted by management and kept informed of matters affecting them and
the overall development of the Group The Group gives full consideration to apphications for employment from
disabled persons where the requirements of the job can be adequately fulfilled by a handicapped or disabled person
Where existing employees become disabled, the Group’s policy, wherever practicable, 1s to provide continuing
employment under normal terms and conditions and to provide traiung and career development and promotion to
disabled employees

Events since the balance sheet date

Details of events since the balance sheet date are set out in note 31

Auditors

Each of the persons who are directors at the date of approval of this report confirms that

1  so far as the directors are aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the auditors are unaware,
and

2 the directors have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as directors 1n order to make them aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors are aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s234ZA of the Companies
Act 1985

Deloitte & Touche LLP resigned as auditors of the Company durning the peniod and BDO Stoy Hayward LLP were
appointed as auditors of the Group by the directors BDO Stoy Hayward LLP have expressed their willingness to
continue tn office as auchtors and a resolution to reappoint them will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting

the Board of Directors and signed on behalf of the Board

29 July 2008

11 -
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Corporate Governance

Introduction

The Board of Directors 15 accountable to shareholders for the good corporate governance of the Group The
principles of corporate governance are set out in the Financial Reporting Council’s revised Combined Code on
corporate govemance 1ssued i 2006 Under the rules of the Alternative Investment Market (AIM) the Group 1s
not required to comply with the Code and the Board considers that the size of the Group does not warrant
comphance with all of the Code’s requirements but has voluntanily adopted appropriate sections of the Combined
Code

Thus section 15 spht mnto two parts The first part sets out how the Group has apphed the principles and the second part
deals wath comphance with the provisions of the Code during the accounting pertod

Principles of the combined code
The Board

The Board now compnses the Chairman, Michael Sinclair, the Chief Executive Officer, José-Lws Viazquez, two
non-executive directors, Richard Blake, the Chamrnan of Audit Comrmttee, and Rafael Martin Sanz The non-
executive directors are independent of management

Non-executive directors are appointed on a contract with a three-rmonth notice peniod The terms and conditions of
the appomtment of the Non-executive directors are available for mspection from the company secretary The
executive directors are appomnted on contracts with a 12-month notice period All directors are subject to re-election
every three years Directors appomnted during the year are subject to re-election by the sharcholders at the first
opportunity after thewr appointment The directors who are subject for re-election mn the coming year are José-Lus
Viazquez and Rafael Martin Sanz Biographies for each director can be found on the company’s website

The Board has a schedule of matters specifically reserved to 1t for decision All directors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary, who 15 responsible to the Board for ensunng that Board procedures are
followed and that applicable rules and regulations are complied with If required, the directors are entitled to take
independent advice, and if the Board 1s informed 1n advance the cost of the advice will be rexrmbursed by the Group
To discharge 1ts governance function effectively, the board has laid down rules for 1ts own activities n a2 governance
process policy Responsibility for implementing this policy 1s placed on the chairman This policy covers

*  the concuct of members at meetings

» the cycle of board activities and the setting of agendas

# the provision of timely information to the board

®  board officers and therr roles

*  board commuttees, their tasks and composition

* qualifications for board membership and the process of the nomunation commuttee
+  the evaluatton and assessment of board performance

¢  the remuneration of non-executive directors

+ the process for directors to obtain independent advice

s the appomtment and role of the company secretary

e  approval of the annual budget and the regular update of forecasts

-12-
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Board meetings are scheduled to take place monthly, with additional meetings to attend to urgent matters The
respective attendance record of each director during the peniod was as follows

Directors’ attendance
Remuneration
Board meetings Audit Commuttee Commuttee
Attended  Possible Attended Possible Attended Possible

Michael Sinclarr 30 310 - - - -
José-Lus Vazquez 3 3 - - - -
Richard Blake 25 30 2 2 1 1
Rafael Martin Sanz ] 3 - - - -
Neil MacDonald 29 29 - - - -
John Swingewood 20 27 - - - -
Jeremy Fenn 14 27 1 2 1 i

To enable the Board to discharge its duties, the Cluef Executive Officer descnbes to the board how the expected
outcome and goals are mtended to be delivered through regular business plans, which also encompass an assessment
of the group’s nisks During the peniod, the board receives updates on progress towards these outcomes through actual
and forecasted results

The Chuef Executive Officer 1s obliged to review and discuss with the board all strategic projects or developments
and all matenal matters currently or prospectively affecting the company and 1its performance This key dialogue
spectfically includes any matenally under-performing business activities, and matenal matters of a social
responsibility, environmental or ethical nature

The board also sets out how the Chuef Executive Officer’s performance will be momtored and recogmses that, in the
multitude of changing circumstances, judgment will always be mvolved The systems set out by the board are
designed to manage, rather than to eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve the goals They provide reasonable, rather
than absolute, assurance agamst material musstatement or loss

The followmng commuttees deal wath specific aspects of the Group’s affairs

Remuneration Comnuttee

Dunng the period the Rermuneration Commuttee, the report of which 15 on pages 16 and 17, compnised the non-
executive directors, Richard Blake (Chairman of the Commuttee) and, up until the date of s resignation (25 February
2008) Jeremy Fenn Rafael Martin Sanz jomned the Remuneration Commuttee on 25 February 2008 1t 15
respensible for the terms and conditions and remuneration of the executive directors and semor management and the
granting of share options to the Group’s executive directors and employees The Rermmeration Commuttee may
consult external agencies when ascertamning market salanes The chairman of the Remuneration Commuttee will be
available at the AGM to answer any shareholder questions

-13-
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Audit commuttee

Dunng the period the Audit Commmttee compnised the non-executive directors, Richard Blake (Chairman of the
Commuttee) and, up until the date of his resignation (25 February 2008), Jeremy Fenn Rafael Martin Sanz jomed
the commuttee on 25 February Biographies detailing the respective qualifications of the Audit Committee
members are available for viewing on our website The board considers that the membershup of the Audit
Commttee as a whole has sufficient recent and relevant financial experience to fulfil its duties

The comnuttee 15 provided wath sufficient resources to undertake its duties It has access to the services of the
company secretary, and all other employees The commuttee may take legal or professional advice when 1t
believes 1t necessary to do so

The commuttee meets as required, but not less than two times a year Other directors may also attend commnuttee
meetings by mvitation, but the commuttee also meets privately for discussions with the external auditors who
attend all 1ts meetings

The main reles and responsibilities of the committee are to
s monitors the integnty of the Group’s financial statements,
¢ review the Group’s mternal financial controls and nsk management systems, and
e oversee the Group’s relationship with the external auditors

The main activities of the commuttee 1n the 15 months ended 31 March 2008 were

e assessing the effectiveness of the sigmficant financial reporting 1ssues related to the preparation of the
Group’s financial statements,

s assessing the effectiveness of the systems established to 1dentify, assess, manage and momtor financial
and non-financial risks,

+ momtorng the mtegnty of the Group’s mnternal financial controls,

¢ reviewing with the external auditor the findings of its work and the effectiveness of the external audit
process,

+ reviewmg arrangements for staff of the company to raise concerns, m confidence, about possible
improprieties i matters of financial reporting of other matters,

e reviewing the need for, and the feasibility of, an mnternal audit function, and

¢ reviewing the independence and objectivity of the external auditor

Internal control

The Board acknowledges its responsibiity for the Group’s system of intemal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness The system 1s designed to manage rather than elimunate the risk of failure to aclieve the Group’s
strategic objectives and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance agamnst material nusstatement or loss

An ongomg process, m accordance with the guidance of the Turmbull Commuttee on mmternal control, has been
established for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Group The process has been 1n
place for the full penod under review and up to the date of approval of the Report and Financial Staternents The
Board regularly reviews the process

The key elements of the nsk management processes and system of nternal control procedures mclude
& a clear orgamsational structure and lines of responsibility,
s the identification through reporting procedures of major financial, commercial, legal and operational risks,

¢ the operation of a comprehensive budgeting and financial reporting system and the companson of actual
results agaimnst budget,
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Mirada plc

Corporate Governance (continued)

s the penodic update of budgets and performance targets and outlook, which 1s reviewed by the Board, and

e the authonsation and monitoring of investment policy, acquisition and disposal proposals, and major capital
expenditure

The key processes used by the Board to review the effectiveness of the system of mtemal controls include the
following

e the review of the results of the nsk assessment,

+ rteview of the actual results against budget and results of the investigation of matenial differences for the
period, and

= the review of 1ssues raised by the external auditors

Statement by the directors on comphance with the provisions of the Combined Code

The Directors believe that they have complied wath the provisions of the Combined Code throughout period ended 31
March 2008, apart from those mentioned below

Nomination Commuttee

The nomination commuttee comprises all the Board members The Combined Code dictates that only non-executive
directors should sit on the normnation comrmttee

Non-executive directors

The Combimed Code dictates that there should be an equal number of non-executive directors to executive
directors on the Board There were three executive directors and two non-executive directors up untid 25 February
2008 The three executive directors then reduced to two for the remainder of the penod Details of appomtments
and resignations of directors can be found in the Directors’ Report
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Mirada plc

Directors’ Remuneration Report

The Remuneration Commuttee consists of the non-executive directors, Richard Blake (Chairman of the
Commuttee) and Rafael Martin Sanz

The Remuneration Commuitee decides the remuneration policy that applies to executive directors and semor
management The Remuneration Commuittee meets as necessary in order to consider and set the annual remmineration
for executive directors and semor managers, having regard to personal performance and mdustry remuneration rates
In determunung that policy 1t considers a number of factors including

e the basic salanes and benefits available to executive duectors and senior management of comparable
companies,

¢ the need to attract and retain directors and others of an appropnate calibre, and
¢ the need to ensure all executives’ commutment to the success of the Group

Non-executive directors are appointed on contracts with a three-month notice penod and may be awarded fees as
determuned by the Board

Executive directors are appointed on contracts with a 12-month notice peried

Directors’ Remuneration

The followmg table of audited information summanses the remmuneration receivable by the directors for the 15
months ended 31 March 2008

Sums paid te 15 months Year
Compensation a third party ended ended
Salary for loss of for directors’ 31 March 31 December
& fees Benefits'"’ Pensions office services 2008 2006
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Executive

Michael Sinclair - 7 22 - 171 200 260
José-Luis Vazquez 17 - - - - 17 -
Neil MacDonald 204 3 17 - - 224 187
John Swingewood 104 - - 88 - 192 126
Robin Robbins - - - - - - 52

Non-executive
Richard Blake 34 - - - - 34 30
Rafael Martin Sanz 3 - - - - 3 -
Jeremy Fenn 25 - - 13 - 38 35
Leo Noé - - - - - - 8
387 10 39 101 171 708 698

! The remuneration package of the directors includes non-cash benefits comprising the provision of life assurance,
health insurance and gym membership
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Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

Directors’ Interests

On 25 February 2008 the Company completed a capital reorgamisation Part of this process was to consohidate
1,000 ordinary shares into 1 new ordmary share In order to provide a realistic companson of the ordinary shares
and share options held by the directors the amounts included for 31 December 2006 have been adjusted to take
the share consolidation 1nto account The mnterests of the directors who held office during the penod 1n the shares
of the Group at 31 March 2008 were as follows

Number of ordinary shares
31 March 31 December

2008 2006
José-Lws Vazquez* 1,180,242 -
Michael Sinclair 254,761 26,701
Neil MacDonald (resigned) 21,079 554
Richard Blake 30 30
John Swingewood (resigned) 60,044 14,432
Jeremy Fenn (resigned) 28,116 14,432

* Shares held by Fresh Inversiones S L , a company under the control of José-Lms Vizquez

Under the terms of the Unapproved and Approved Executive Share Option Scheme, the directors as at 31 March
2008 have an interest 1n options over ordmary shares of £1 00 each of the Company as follows

Number of options
Granted/ Exercised Date from
1Jan (cancelled) in inthe 31 Mar Exercse which
2007 the period period 2008 price  exercisable Expiry date
Michael Sinclar 700 (700) - - £12 25 29 Nov 2003 29 May 2013
Michael Sinclair 7,000 (7,000) - - £15000 23 Jun 2006 22 Dec 2014
Michael Sinclair - 300,000 - 300,000 £1 096 1 Jan 2011 25 Feb 2018
John Swingewood 7,000 (7,000) - - £15000 23 Jun 2006 22 Dec 2014
Neil MacDonald 1,584 (1,584) - - £1000 23 Jun 2006 22 Dec 2014
Neil MacDonald 7,500 {7,500) - - £18 50 22 Jun 2007 21 Dec 2014

Under IFRS 2 (Share based payments), share options which are awarded to directors and employees are subject to
a share based payment charge which 1s measured at the fair value of the option at the date of grant and 1s charged
to the income statement over the vesting penod of the option Thus charge 18 purely an accounting entry and there
1s no cash related cost to the Group In the 15 months ended 31 March 2008 the 300,000 share options granted to
Michael Sinclair mcurred a charge of £18,000 In the year ended 31 December 2006 the 7,000 share options
granted to Michael Sinclair and John Swingewood each incurred a charged of £159,000, these share options were
cancelled during the period

Ths report was approved by the directors and signed on 1ts behalf by

1ef Executive Officer
9 July 2008

-17-




Mirada plc

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities

Directors’ responsiblities

The Directors are responsible for keepng proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the Group, for safeguarding the assets of the Company, for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other uregularities and for the preparation of a Directors’
Report which complies with the requirements of the Compantes Act 1985

The Directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with the
Companies Act 1985 The Directors are also required to prepare financial statements for the Group n accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the Furopean Union (IFRSs) and the rules of the
London Stock Exchange for companies trading securities on the Alternative Investment Market The Directors
have chosen to prepare financial statements for the Company m accordance with UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice

Group financial statements

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that financial statements present fairly for each financial year the
Group’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows This requires the faithful representation of the
effects of transactions, other events and conditions in accordance with the defimtions and recogmtion cntena for
assets, habilities, mcome and expenses set out 1n the International Accounting Standards Board’s ‘Framework for
the preparation and presentation of financial statements’ In virtually all circumstances, a fair presentation will be
achieved by compliance with all applicable IFRSs A fair presentation also requires the Directors to

» consistently select and apply appropriate accounting policies,

« present information, including accounting policies, n a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and
understandable mformation, and

» provide additional disclosures when complance with the specific requirernents m IFRSs 1s nsufficient to enable
users to understand the 1mpact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity’s financial
position and financial performance

Parent company financial statements

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period In
preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s mapproprate to presume that the
company will continue 1n business,

» make judgements and estunates that are reasonable and prudent, and

» state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed
and explained 1n the financial statements

Financial statements are published on the Group’s website m accordance with legislation in the Umited Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemmation of financial statements, which may vary from legislation mn other
jurisdictions The mamtenance and mtegnty of the Group’s website 1s the responsibility of the Directors The
Directors’ responsibility also extends to the ongoing ntegnty of the financial statements contamed theremn

The mamtenance and integrity of Mirada plc’s websate 1s the responsibility of the Directors The work camed out
by the auditors does not nvolve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no
responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they were mtially
presented on the website Legislation m the Umited Kingdom governing the preparation and dissenmnation of the
financial statements may differ in other jurisdictions
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Mirada plc
15 months ended 31 March 2008

We have audited the group and parent company financial statements (the "financial statements") of Mirada plc for
the 15 months ended 31 March 2008 which compnse the consolhidated imcome statement, the consolidated
statement of recogmised income and expense, the consolidated and company balance sheets, the consolidated cash
flow statement and the related notes These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting pelicies
set out theremn

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for prepanng the Group Report and Financial Statements i accordance wath
applicable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (TFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and
for preparing the parent company financial statements 1n accordance with applicable law and Umted Kingdom
Accounting Standards (Umted Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out 1n the statement of
directors' responsibilities

Our responsibility 1s to audit the financial statements mn accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Audhting (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and have been
property prepared 1n accordance with the Companies Act 1985 and whether the information given in the directors’
report 1s consistent with those financial statements We also report to you 1f, in our opimion, the company has not
kept proper accounting records, 1f we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our
audst, or if information specified by law regarding directors' remuneration and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We read other information contained 1n the Report and Financial Statements, and consider whether 1t 15 consistent
with the audited financial statements This other information comprises only the Directors’ Report, the
Chairman’s Statement and Chief Executive Officer’s Report We consider the mmphcations for our report 1f we
become aware of any apparent musstatements or material mconsistencies with the financial statements Our
responsilities do not extend to any other information

Qur report has been prepared pursuant to the requirements of the Compamnies Act 1985 and for no other purpose
No person 15 entitled to rely on this report unless such a person 15 a person entitled to rely upon this report by
virtue of and for the purpose of the Companies Act 1985 or has been expressly authonsed to do so by our prior
written consent Save as above, we do not accept responsibility for this report to any other person or for any other
purpese and we hereby expressly disclaim any and all such hability

Basis of audit opimon

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the
Auditing Practices Board An audit includes examunation, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures 1n the financial statements It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments
made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the group's and company's circumstances, consistently apphed and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free from matenal nusstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or error In formung our opinion
we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Mirada plc
15 months ended 31 March 2008

Opiion
In our opimon

+ the group financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European
Umion, of the state of the group's affairs as at 31 March 2008 and of 1ts loss for the 15 month penod then ended,

+ the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view, 1n accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, of the state of the parent company's affairs as at 31 March 2008,

« the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Comparnes Act 1985, and

» the information given i the directors’ report 15 consistent with the financial statements

bo ey Napeett “w

BDO Stoy Hayward LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

29 July 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement
15 months ended 31 March 2008

15 months ended 31 March 2008
Continuing Discontinued

Year ended 31 December 2006
Continuing Dscontinued

operations  operations Total operations operations Total
Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue 5 12,504 1,049 13,553 13,859 2,918 16,778
Cost of sales (8,242) (485) (8,727) (9,131) (1,495) (10,626)
Gross profit 4,262 564 4,826 4,728 1,423 6,152
Net gamuing income 1,304 - 1,304 2,459 - 2,459
Other income — profit on disposal 12 - 576 576 - - -
Depreciation 6 (1,486) (5) (1,491) (1,178) (98) (1,276)
Amortisation of deferred development costs 6 (19 - (10} (2,535) (95) (2,630
Impairment of goodwll 6 (12,000) - (12,000) (16,427) - (16,427)
Restructuring costs 7 (960) (76) (1,036) (2,107) (881) (2,988)
Share based payment charge 27 (205) - (205) (488) - (488)
Other adnmunustrative expenses (10,024) (906)  (10,930) (7,731) (2,163) {9,895)
Total admimstrative costs (24,685) (987) (25,672) (30,466)  (3,237) (33,704)
Operating (loss)/profit 6 (19,119) 153 (18,966) (23,279) (1,814) (25,093)
Finance income 10 2 - 2 3 - 3
Finance expense 11 (1,575) (24) (1,599 (1,507) {(36) (1,543
Loss before taxation (20,692) 129 (20,563) (24,783) {1,850) (26,633)
Taxation 13 - - - - - -
Loss for the financial period (20,692) 129  (20,563) (24,783) (1,850) (26,633)
Loss per share 15 months ended Year ended
31 March 2008 31 December 2006
£ £
From continmung operations

- basic & diluted 14 902 42 64

From continuing and discontinued operations
- basic & diluted 14 896 45 82

The above amounts are attributable to the equity holders of the parent
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Mirada plc
Consolidated Statement of Recognised Income and Expense
15 months ended 31 March 2008

15 months ended Year ended

31 March 2008 31 December 2006

£000 £000
Loss for the period (20,563) {26,633)
Currency translation differences 260 -
Total recognised mncome and expense for the period (20,303) {26,633)
Attributable to equity holders of the parent (20,303) {26,633)
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Mirada plc
Consolidated Balance Sheet
31 March 2008

31 March 31 December

2008 2006
Notes £000 £000
Property, plant and equipment 16 822 2,123
Goodwll 15 17,574 25,521
Intangible assets 15 557 -
Investments 17 - 18
Non-current assets 18,953 27,662
Trade & other recervables 18 3,149 4,437
Cash and cash equivalents 29 7,154 139
Current assets 10,303 4,576
Total assets 29,256 32,238
Loans and borrowings 20 (234) -
Trade and other payables 19 (8,776) (9,559)
Current habilities (9,010) (9,559)
Net current assets/(lhabilities) 1,293 (4,983)
Total assets less current habilities 20,246 22,679
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 21 (19) (5,229
Provisions 22 (8) (81)
Other non-current payables 21 (450) -
Deferred income 21 - {2,271)
Non-current habilities “@77) {7,581)
Total habihties (9,487) (17,140)
Net assets 19,769 15,098
Equity attributable to equity holders of the company
Share caprtal 25 34,923 13,878
Shares to be 1ssued 25 281 281
Share premmum 26 79,731 78,479
Other reserves 26 5,036 2,574
Retamed earnings 26 {100,202) (80,114)
Equity 28 19,769 15,098

These financial statements were approved and authonsed for 1ssue on 29 July 2008

rd of Directors

Michae
Chairman

Jo
1ef Executive Officer
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Mirada plc
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
15 months ended 31 March 2008

15 months Year ended
31 March 2008 31 December 2006
Note £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss for the perniod (20,563) (26,633)
Adjustments for
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,491 1,276
Amortisation and impairment of goodwill and intangible assets 12,010 19,057
Impairment of investments (18) -
Foreign exchange 225 -
Profit on sale of discontinued operations 12 (576) -
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment €)) -
Share-based payment charges 205 488
Fmance income 2) 3)
Finance expense 1,599 1,543
Cash flow relating to restructuring provisions - 2,988
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital (5.636) (1,284}
Decrease in trade and other recetvables 1,609 1,202
Decrease in trade and other payables (2,611) (569)
Cash used 1n operations {6,638) (651)
Interest and simular expenses paid (303) (1,004)
Net cash used in operating activities (6.941) (1,655)
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest and simular mncome received 2 3
Costs of acquisition of subsidiary 30 (442) -
Net cash acquired with subsidiary 30 4,330 -
Disposat of subsidiary, net of overdrafis disposed 12 253 -
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (96) (1,024)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment & -
Purchases of other intangible assets - (705)
Net cash generated from/(used 1n) investing activities 4,055 {1,726)
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of ordinary share capital 10,009 2,008
Costs of 1ssue of ordinary share capital (61) -
Issue of convertible loans 650 6,000
Repayment of loans (664) (1,000)
Repayment of capital element of finance leases (267) (117}
Net cash generated from financing activities 9.667 6,891
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 29 6,781 3510
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginming of the penod 139 (3,371)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 6,920 139

Cash and cash equivalents (which are presented as a single class of assets on the face of the balance sheet} comprise
cash at bank and other short-term hughly hquid mvestments with a maturity of three months or less
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Mirada plc
Notes to consolidated accounts
15 months ended 31 March 2008

1. General information

Mirada plc 1s a company incorporated n the United Kingdom under the Compantes Act 1985 The address of
the registered office s 6 & 7 Princes Court, Wapping Lane, London, E1W 2DA  The nature of the group’s
operations and 1ts principal activities are set out 1 the Directors’ Report on page 8

The directors have chosen to present these financial statements i the functional currency of the primary
economic environment mn which the group operates which 1s Pounds Sterling All balances are shown n
thousands unless otherwise stated Foreign operations are included in accordance with the policies set out m
note 2

2. Significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board as adopted by European Union (“IFRSs”) and with those parts of the Compames Act 1985
applicable to companies preparing their accounts under IFRSs

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below

First time adoption

The group has adopted IFRS from 1 January 2006 (‘the date of transition’), please refer to note 32, First
Tme Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards, for details of the transition

Basis of consolidation

The consohidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (1ts subsidianes) made up to 31 March 2008 and 31 December 2006 Control 15
achieved where the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an investee
entity so as to obtamn benefits from its activines The Group income statement includes the results of
subsidharies acquired or disposed of during the penod from the effective date of acquisition or up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidianes to bring the accounting
policies used into line with those used by the group

All infra-group transactions, balances, mcome and expenses are elunmnated on consolidation

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidianes or trade and assets, 15 accounted for using the purchase method The cost of
the acquisition 15 measured at the aggregate of the far values, at the date of exchange, of assets given,
hiabilities incurred or assumed, and equaty instruments 1ssued or to be 1ssued, by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly atinbutable to the business combination The acquiree’s
identifiable assets, habilities and contingent habilhities that meet the conditions for recogmition under IFRS 3
are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date

Goodwill arssing on acquisition 1s recognised as an asset and mmtially measured at cost and 1s accounted for
according to the policy below
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Mirada plc
Notes to consolidated accounts
15 months ended 31 March 2008

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations (continued)

The Group has taken the exemption conferred in IFRS 1, “Furst-time Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards”, not to restate buswmess combinations prior to the transition date of 1 January 2006
under IFRS 3

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment 1s stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value

Depreciation

Depreciation 1s provided on all property, plant and equipment, other than freehold land, at rates calculated to
wrte off the cost, less estimated residual value based on prices prevailing at the date of acqusition, of each
asset evenly over 1ts expected useful hfe, as follows

- Office & computer equipment 33 3% per annum

- Shont-leasehold improvements 10% per annum

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment 1if events or changes m
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable

The asset’s residual values, useful lives and methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropmnate, at each
financial period end

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest n the fair value of the
identifiable assets, intangible fixed assets and liabilities of a subsidiary, or acquired sole trade business at the
date of acquisiion Goodwall 1s imtially recogmised as an asset at cost and 15 subsequently measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses Goodwill which 1s recognised as an asset 1s reviewed for impairment
at least annually Any mpairment 1s recogmsed immediately mn the Group mcome statement and 15 not
subsequently reversed

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill 15 allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating umts
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combmaton Cash-generating umts to which goodwill has been
allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there 15 an indication that the uit may
be impared If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unut 1s less than the carrying amount of the umit,
the impairment loss 15 allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the umt and
then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset i the umt

On cisposal of a subsidiary the attributable amount of goodwill 15 included m the determunation of the profit
or loss on disposal

Goodwill ansing on acquisitions before the date of transition to IFRS has been retained at the previous UK
GAAP amounts subject to bemng tested for impairment at that date and subsequently as requured by the
provisions of IAS 36 “Impaurment of Assets”
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Notes to consolidated accounts
15 months ended 31 March 2008

2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with a finite useful life represent items which have been separately identified under IFRS 3
ansing 1n busmess combinations, or meet the recogmtion critena of IAS 38, “Intangible Assets” Intangible
assets acquired as part of a business combination are imtially recogmsed at their fair value and subsequently
amortised on a straight line basis over their useful economuc lives Intangible assets that meet the recognition
criterta of IAS 38, “Intangible Assets” are carried at cost less amortisation and any impairment losses
Intangible assets compnse of completed technology and acquired software

Amortisation

Amortisation of mtangible assets acquired 1n a business combation 1s calculated over the following periods
on a straight line basis

Completed technology - over a useful life of 4 years

Amortisation of other intangible assets (computer software) 1s calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate the cost of the asset over 1ts estunated useful life, which equates to 25% to 50% per annum

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities 1s recognised as an expense 1 the period 1n which 1t 1s incurred

Any internally-generated intangible asset ansing from the Group’s development projects are recognised only
1if all of the following conditions are met

The techmcal feasibility of completing the mtangible asset so that 1t will be available for use or sale

The 1ntention to complete the ntangible asset and use or sell 1t

The ability to use or sell the ntangible asset

How the intangible asset will generate probable future economuc benefits Among other things, the

Group can demonstrate the existence of a market for the output of the mtangible asset or the mtangible

asset 1tself or, 1f 1t 15 to be used internally, the usefulness of the intangible asset

s  The availability of adequate techmcal, financial and other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset

s Its ability to measure rehiably the expendtture atinbutable to the intangible asset duning its development

Internalty-generated ntangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over their useful lives of four
years  Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
recogmsed as an expense 1n the pertod in which 1t 1s mncurred

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of 1ts tangible and intangible assets to
determune whether there 1s any indication that those assets have suffered an imparment loss If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset 1s estunated m order to determune the extent of the
impairment loss (1f any)

Recoverable amount 1s the lgher of fair value less costs to sell and value 1n use In assessing value 1n use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted
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Notes to consolidated accounts
15 months ended 31 March 2008

2.  Sigmficant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding geodwill (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating umt) ts estumated to be less than its carrymg
amount, the carrymg amount of the asset (cash-generating umt) 1s reduced to 1its recoverable amount An
mmpatrment loss 1s recognised n the income statement as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset 1s
carried at a revalued armnount, m which case the wnpawrment loss 1s treated as a revaluation decrease

Where an impawrment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating umit} 1s
increased to the revised estimate of 1ts recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been deternuned had no impamrment loss been recogmsed for
the asset (cash-generating umt) mn prior periods A reversal of an impairment loss 1s recogmsed as income
immediately, unless the relevant asset 1s carmed at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss 1s treated as a revaluation imncrease

Financial instruments

Fmancial assets and financial hiabilities are recogmsed on the Group's balance sheet at fair value when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the mstrument

Trade receivables

Trade receivables represent amounts due from customers 1 the normal course of business All amounts are
mifially stated at their farr value and are subsequently carmed at amortised costs, less provision for
mpairment

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents mclude cash at hand and deposits held at call with banks with oniginal maturities of
three months or less

Financial habilities and equity instruments

Financial habihities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into An equity instrument 1s any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of the Group after deducting all of 1ts habilities

Equity instruments 1ssued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs

Financial instruments 1ssued by the Group are treated as equity only to the extent that they do not meet the
defimtion of a financial habihty The Group’s ordinary shares, A deferred shares and deferred shares are
classified as equity When new shares are 1ssued, they are recorded in share capital at their par value The
excess of the 1ssue price over the par value 18 recorded in the share premium reserve

Incremental external costs directly attributable to the 1ssue of new shares (other than in connection with a
business combination) are recorded 1n equity as a deduction, net of tax, to the share premium reserve

Bank Borrowings

Interest-bearimg bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds recerved, net of direct 1ssue costs
Finance charges are accounted for on an accruals basis in the income statement using the effective interest
rate method and are added to the carrying amount of the mstrument to the extent that they are not settled in
the period 1n which they arnse
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2.

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Trade payables

Trade payables are imtially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest rate method

Convertible debt

The proceeds recerved on 1ssue of the group's convertible debt are allocated into thewr hiability and equity
components The amount mtially attributed to the debt component equals the discounted cash flows using a
market rate of interest that would be payable on a sumlar debt mstrument that does not include an option to
convert Subsequently, the debt component 1s accounted for as a financial liability measured at amortised
cost

The difference between the fair value of the convertible debt instrument as a whole and the amount allocated
to the debt component 15 credited direct to equity and 1s not subsequently re-measured

Employee share incentive plans

The Group 1ssues equity-settled share-based payments to certain employees (including directors) These
payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant by use of the Black-Scholes pricing model This faur
value cost of equity-settled awards 1s recogmsed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of any non market-based
vesting conditions The expected life used m the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best
estimate, for the effects of non-transferabihty, exercise restrictions, and behavioural considerations A
corresponding credit 1s recorded in equity 1n the share option reserve

Leases

Leases taken by the Group are assessed individually as to whether they are finance leases or operating leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the nisks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee All other leases are classified as operating leases

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the nsks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified
as operating leases Operating lease rental payments are recogmsed as an expense 1n the income statement on
a straight-line basis over the lease term  The benefit of lease incentives 15 spread over the term of the lease

The Group currently has no matenal finance leases
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2. Sigmificant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax charges

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported mn the mcome statement because 1t excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible 1n other years and 1t further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The Group’s
hability for current tax 1s calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date

Deferred tax 1s the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and habilities m the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used m the computation of
taxable profit, and 1s accounted for using the balance sheet liability method Deferred tax habilities are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recogmsed to the extent that 1t 15
probable that taxable profits will be available agamnst which deductible temporary differences can be utilised

Such assets and liabilities are not recogmsed 1f the temporary difference arises from the imtial recogmtion of
goodwill or from the mmitial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities n
a transaction that affects netther the tax profit nor the accounting profit

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 15 reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that 1t 15 no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the peniod when the hiability 1s settled
or the asset 15 realised Deferred tax 1s charged or credited in the income statement, except when 1t relates to
items charged or credited directly to equity, in whuch case the deferred tax 1s also dealt with 1n equity

Deferred tax assets and lrabilities are offset when there 15 a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabihties and when they relate to mncome taxes levied by the same taxation authonty
and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis

Revenue recognition
Interactive service revenues
Interactive service revenues are divided mto 3 types, fixed-priced contracts, self-billing revenues and

development contracts including the sale of licences

Fixed-price contract revenues are recognised as these services are provided or 1n accordance with the contract
Revenue 1s recognised when the sigmficant nsks and rewards of products and services have been passed to the
buyer and can be measured reliably

In respect of self-hilling revenues, the Group are informed by the customer of the amount of revenue to invoice
and the revenues are recogmsed n the penod these services are provided

Where the revenue relates to the sale of a hicence, the licence element of the sale 1s recogmsed as income when
the following conditions have been satisfied

o the software has been provided to the customer in 2 form that enables the customer to utilise i,

» the ongoing cbhligauons of the Group to the customer, aside from the maintenance, are mumimal, and
e the amount payable by the customer 1s deterrminable and there 1s a reasonable expectation of payment
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2.

Significant accounting policies {continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Net gaming revenues

Revenue 1s recogmsed to the extent that 1t 1s probable that econonuc benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue can be reliably measured Revenue 1s recognised in the accounting periods m which the garmng
transactions occurred Net Gamung Revenue 1s defined as bemng the difference between bets placed by
members less amounts won by members All gamuing revenue 1s generated i the United Kingdom.

Deferred revenue

Certamn revenues eamed by the Group are invoiced 1n advance As outhined 1n the revenue recogmtion policy
above, revenues are recognised mn the peniod in wiuch the Group provides the services to the customer, revenues
relating to services which have yet to be provided to the customer are deferred

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates defined contribuhon pension schemes The amount charged to the income statement 1n
respect of pension costs and other post-retiremnent benefits 1s the contributions payable 1n the period

Differences between contributions payable i the period and contributions actually paid are shown as either
accruals or prepayments in the balance sheet

Foreign exchange

The individual financial statements of each group company are presented in the currency of the primary
economic environment mn which 1t operates (its functional currency) For the purpose of the conselidated
financial statements, the result and the financial position of each group company are expressed in pounds
sterling, which 1s the functional currency of the Company, and the presentation currency for the consohdated
financial statements

On translation of balances into the functional currency of the entity 11 which they are held, exchange
differences ansing on the seitlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
included 1n profit or loss for the period For such non-monetary 1tems, any exchange component of that gain
or loss 1s also recogmsed directly in equity

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the group’s
foreign operations are transitioned at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date Income and
expense 1tems are translated at the average exchange relates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly duning that period, in which case the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used
Exchange differences ansing, if any, are classified as equity and transferred to the group’s foreign exchange
reserve  Such translation differences are recognised as income or an expenses in the period in which the
operations 15 disposed of

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate  The group has elected to treat goodwall and
fair value adjustments ansing on acquisitions before the date of transition to IFRS as sterling denormunated
assets and habilites
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3.  Standards not yet effective to the Group
Standards, amendments and interpretations to published standards not yet effective

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published that are
mandatory for the group's accounting periods begmmng after 1 Apnl 2008 or later penods and which the
group has decided not to adopt early These are

- IFRS 8, Operating Segments (effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009) Thas
standard sets out requirements for the disclosure of information about an entity's operating segments and also
about the entity's products and services, the geographical areas m whach 1t operates, and 1ts major customers
It replaces IAS 14, Segmental Reporting The group expects to apply this standard in the accounting period
begmning on 1 Apnl 2009  As this 1s a disclosure standard 1t will not have any impact on the results or net
assets of the group

- fAS 23, Borrowing Costs (revised) (effective for accounting peniods beginning on or after 1 January 2009)
The revised IAS 23 15 still to be endorsed by the EU  The main change from the previous version 1s the
removal of the option of immediately recogmsing as an expense borrowmg costs that relate to quahfymg
assets, broadly being assets that take a substantial period of time to get ready for use or sale The Group 15
currently assessing 1ts impact on the financial statements

- Rewised IFRS 3, Business Combmations and complementary Amendments to I4S 27, ‘Consohdated and
separate financial statements (both effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009} The
revised IFRS 3 and IAS 27 are still to be endorsed by the EU The revised IFRS 3 and amendments to IAS 27
anse from a jomt project with the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB), the US standards setter,
and result i IFRS being largely converged with the related, recently 1ssued, US requirements There are
certain very significant changes to the requirements of IFRS, and options available, if accounting for business
combinations Management 15 currently assessing the impact of revised IFRS 3 and amendments to TAS 27 on
the accounts

- IFRIC 11, IFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transacnions (effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after 1 March 2007) IFRIC 11 requires share-based payment transactions mm which an entity receives
services as consideration for its own equity instruments to be accounted for as equity-settled This applies
regardless of whether the entity chooses or 1s required to buy those equity instruments from another party to
satisfy 1ts obligations to 1ts employees under the share-based payment arrangement It also apphes regardless
of whether (a) the employee's nights to the entity's equuty instruments were granted by the entity itself or by
its shareholder(s), or (b) the share-based payment arrangement was seitled by the entity itself or by 1ts
shareholder(s) Management 15 currently assessing the impact of IFRIC 11 on the accounts

- IFRIC ]2, Service Concession Arrangements (effective for accounting periods beginming on or after
1 January 2008) IFRIC 12 1s still to be endorsed by the EU IFRIC 12 gives guidance on the accounting by
operators for public-to-private service concession arrangements IFRIC 12 1s not relevant to the group's
operations due to absence of such arrangemenits

- IFRIC 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes (effective for accounting periods begmmng on or after 1 July
2008) IFRIC 13 15 stll to be endorsed by the EU IFRIC 13 addresses sales transactions i which the
entities grant thewr customers award credits that, subject to meeting any further qualifying conditions, the
custorners can redeemn i future for free or discounted goods or services Management 1s currently assessing
the impact of IFRIC 13 on the accounts

- IFRIC 14, IAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Mimmum Funding Requirements and thewr
Interaction (effective for accounting pertods beginning on or after 1 January 2008) IFRIC 14 1s stll to be
endorsed by the EU IFRIC 14 clanfies when refunds or reductions o future contributions shouid be
regarded as available i accordance with paragraph 58 of IAS 19, how a mumimum funding requirement nught
affect the avarlability of reductions 1n future contributions and when a mummum funding requirement mught
give nise to a hability Management 1s currently assessing the impact of IFRIC 14 on the accounts
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3.

Standards not yet effective to the Group (continued)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to published standards not yet effective (continued)

- IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate (effective for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2009) IFRIC 15 1s sull to be endorsed by the EU IFRIC 15 addresses two 1ssues (a)
whether the agreement 1s within the scope of IAS 11 or IAS 18, and (b) when the revenue from the
construction or real estate shall be recogmsed This IFRIC 1s not applicable to the company as 1t 15 not
operating in real estate sector

- IFRIC 16, Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operanon (effective for accounting periods beginmng
on or after 1 October 2008) IFRIC 16 1s stilt to be endorsed by the EU IFRIC 16 provides gumidance on
where, within a group, hedging mstruments that are hedges of a net investment 1n a foreign operation can be
held to qualify for hedge accounting Management 1s currently assessing the mpact of IFRIC 16 on the
accounts

- Amendment to IFRS 2, Share-based payments vesting conditions and cancellations (effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009) This amendment 1s still to be endorsed by the EU
The Amendment to IFRS 2 15 of particular relevance to compamies that operate employee shares save
schemes This 15 because it results 1 an immediate acceleration of the IFRS 2 expense that would otherwise
have been recogmsed 1n future periods should an employee decide to stop contnbuting to the savings plan, as
well as a potential revision to the fair value of the awards granted to factor in the probability of employees
withdrawing from such a plan The IFRIC 1s not applicable to the Group as 1t does not investment hedge

- Amendments to IAS I Presentation of Fmancial Statements A Revised Presentation (effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009) This amendment 1s still to be endorsed by the EU
The revised version of IAS 1 (revised 2007) replaces IAS | Presentation of Financial Statements (revised 1n
2003) as amended in 2005 and key changes include the requirement to aggregate mformation in the financial
statements on the basis of shared charactenistic, changes in the ttles of some pnmary statements (non
mandatory), introducing the possibility of a single Statement of Comprehensive mcome (combining the
Income Statement and the Statement of Recogmsed Income and Expense), Only the total of comprehensive
mcome 1S to be shown n the Statement of Changes in equity Management 1s currently assessing the impact
of the Amendment on the accounts

Amendments to IAS 32 Fmancial Instruments Presentation and IAS | Presentaton of Financial Statements
- Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liquidation (effective for accounting penods
beginning on or after 1 January 2009} This amendment 1s still to be endorsed by the EUJ The amendments
result 1n certain types of financial instrument that meet the definition of a hability, but represent the residual
mterest 1n the net assets of the entity, being classified as equity Management 1s currently assessing the impact
of the Amendment on the accounts

- Amendments to IFRS | and IAS 27 Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly-Controlled Entity or
Associate (effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009) These amendments are still
to be endorsed by the EU The amendments permuts the entity at its date of transittion to IFRSs m its separate
financial statements to use a deemed cost to account for 1ts investment 1n subsidiary, jointly controlled entity
or associate The deemed cost of such mvestment could be either the fair value of the investment at the date
of transitton, which would be determined 1n accordance with IAS 39 Financial instruments Recognition and
Measurement or, the carrying amount of the mvestment under previous GAAP at the date of transition
Management is currently assessing the 1mpact of the Amendment on the accounts

- Improvements to IFRS (effective for accounting periods begmning on or after 1 July 2009) This
improvements project 1s still to be endorsed by the EU The amendments take various forms, mncluding the
clanficaton of the requurements of IFRS and the elumunation of inconsistencies between Standards
Management 1s currently assessing the impact of the Amendment on the accounts.

33




Mirada plc
Notes to consolidated accounts
15 months ended 31 March 2008

4.  Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
Critical judgments in applying the group’s accounting policies

In the application of the group’s accounting policies, which are described 1n note 2, the directors are requured
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and habilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
expernence and other factors that are considered to be relevant Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis

Key sources of esmation uncertainty

The following 1s the cnitical judgment that that the directors have made in the process of applying the group’s
accounting policies that has the most sigmficant effect on the amounts recogmzed in the financial statements

Impairment of goodwtll

Determuning whether goodwill 1s impaired requires an estimation of the value 1n use of the cash-generating
umts to which goodwill has been allocated The value 1n use calculation requires the group to estunate the
future cash flows expected to arnse from the cash-generating units and the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
tune value of money and the risks specific to the cash-generating umt Actual events may vary matenally
from management expectation
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5.

Segmental reporting

A segment 15 a distimgwnshable component of the Group that 1s engaged m providing products or services within
a particular economic environment The principal activities of the Group are divided into the following business
segments, games and gambling, interactive services and dating These segments are the basis on which the

management analyses Group's performance

15 months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December
2008 20006
£'000 £'000
Segment Revenue
Games and gambling 3,922 4,804
Interactive services 8,582 8,990
Dating* 1,049 2,918
Consolhidated revenue 13,553 16,778
Gross profit
Games and gambling 1,192 44
Interactive services 3,070 4,685
Dating* 564 1,423
Consohdated 4,826 6,152
Net fixed odds gaming income 1,304 2,459
Segment result for period
Games and gambling 1,657 2,097
Interactive services 845 870
Dating* (excluding profit on disposal) (447) (1,850)
Unallocated central costs (22,618) (27,750}
Consolidated loss for the period (20,563) (26,633)

*The Group ceased all 1ts operations 1n the dating sector during the period See note 12 for further details

There 15 no sigmficant inter-segment revenue mcluded in the segments which 1s required to be ehmmated

Up until 25 February 2008 on the acqusition of Fresh, a business located m Spam with the Euro as 1its
functional currency, the operations of the Group were based 1n the UK and as a consequence, for the 15 months
ended 31 March 2008 the directors consider that the Group operated m only one geographical segment but

three business segments

In the opmon of the directors, the results for one month of trade of Fresh included wathin the consohidated
mcome statement are not signuficant enough to warrant separate segmental disclosure wittun the 2008 Report

and Fimnancial Statements

As at 31 March 2008 Fresh had net assets of £5 3 mullhion including cash of £4 76 mulhon
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6. Operating loss
The operating loss 1s stated after charging/(crediting) the following

15 months ended Year ended

31 March 31 December

2008 20006

£000 £000

Depreciation of owned assets 933 1,125
Depreciahon of assets held under finance lease 558 151
Amortisation of deferred development costs 10 2,630
Restructuring costs (note 7) 1,036 2,988
Impairment of goodwill 12,000 16,427
Provision for bad debts - 637
Share based payment charge 205 448
Profit on sale of subsidiary (576) -
Research and development expenditure 852 504
Operating lease charges 581 866

During the year ended 31 December 2006 the Group negotiated a permanent reduction 1n contractual
habilities relating to bandwidth and transmssion costs of £1,745,000, which has been credited to cost of
sales

Analysis of auditors’ remuneration 1s as follows

15 months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December
2008 2006
£000 £000
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit of the
Company’s financial statements 20 25
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors and its associates for other
services
- The audit of the Company’s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 140 198
- Tax services 30 -
- Other services provided 25 -
Total fees 215 223
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6. Operating loss (continued)

Reconcihation of operating loss for continuing operations to loss before interest, taxation, depreciation,
amortisation, restructuring and share-based payment charges

15 months ended Year ended

31 March 31 December

2008 2006

£000 £000

Operating loss (19,119) (23,279)
Depreciation 1,486 1,178
Amortisation of deferred development costs 10 2,535
Impairment of goodwill 12,000 16,427
Restructuning costs 960 2,107
Share based payment charge 205 488

Loss before mterest, taxation, depreciation, restructuring, and

share-based payment charges (4,458) (544)

Adjusted loss before interest, taxation, depreciation, amortisation, restructuring and share-based payment
charges has been presented to provide additional information to the reader

7. Restructuring costs

The restructuning costs, included within administrative expenses, are detailed below

15 months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December
2008 2006
£000 £000
Recognised 1n arriving at operating loss:
Restructuring costs 1,036 2,988

Duning the 15 months ended 31 March 2008 the Group mcurred restructunng costs in relation to the
refinancing and restructuring which was completed on 25 February 2008 The main elements of which
contributed to the restructuring costs consisted of professional fees 1n relation to the placing, the conversion
of convertible loans and the share consolidation, and redundancy costs 1n relation to the reorgamsation of
SenIor management team

Durnng the period the Group also mcurred redundancy costs relating to the discontinuation of the Group’s
dating activities

The restructuring costs of £2,988,000 recorded for the year ended 31 December 2006 mclude costs incurred
1n the restructuring of the Group's dating business and the loss on closure of YooPlay Ltd and MMTYV Ltd,
and the associated redundancy costs and legal fees
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8. Directors’ remuneration

The emoluments received by the directors who served during the 15 months ended 31 March 2008 were as

follows
15 months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December
2008 2006
£000 £000
Executive directors:
Aggregate emoluments 496 585
Compensation for loss of office 88 -
Pensions and benefits 49 40
Non-executive directors
Aggregate emoluments 62 73
Compensation for loss of office 13 -
708 698
Emoluments payable to the highest paid director are as follows
15 months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December
2008 2006
£000 £000
Aggregate emoluments 204 234
Company contributions to pension scheme and benefits 20 26
9. Staff costs and employee information
15 months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December
2008 2006
£000 £000
Wages and salaries 4,772 6,505
Social security costs 490 682
Other pension costs 124 137
Staff costs 5,386 7,324

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme for certain employees and two directors (2006 2
directors) The outstanding amount of pension contrnibutions accruing at the period end was £8,000 (2006

£8,000)
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9, Staff costs and employee information (continued)

The average number of persons, including executive directors, employed by the Group during the period

was

15 months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December
2008 2006

By activity
Office and management 20 37
Platform and development 42 103
Sales and marketing 25 94
87 234

10. Finance income
15 months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December
2008 2006
£000 £000
Bank nterest receivable 2 3
11. Finance expense
15 months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December
2008 2006
£000 £000
Interest and finance charges on bank loans and overdrafts 661 998
Convertible loan interest 843 465
Finance charges payable under finance leases and hire purchase 67 32
contracts

Other interest payable 28 48
1,599 1,543

Finance charges include all fees directly incurred to facilitate borrowing These nclude professional fees
paid to accounting practices, bank arrangement fees and fees to secure required guarantees
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12.  Discontinued operations

The discontinued columns in the income statement reflect the fact that the Group has ceased all its
operations 1n the dating sector which had previously traded through 1ts subsidianes Yoomedia Dating Group

Ltd and Finlaw 532 Ltd

On 13 December 2007 the Group sold its 100% shareholding 1n Yoomed:ia Dating Group Lirmuted for a cash
consideration of £250,000 On 15 October 2007 the Group placed Finlaw 532 Ltd (which traded under the

name Avenues) 1nto lrquidation

The gam on the disposal of Yoomedia Dating Group Ltd and hiquidation of Finlaw 532 Ltd was determuned

as follows

Consideration — cash

Net lrabilities disposed of
Goodwill

Property, plant and equipment
Trade and other receivables
Bank loan and overdraft
Trade and other payables

Gain on disposal

The net cash flow comprises
Cash recerved
Bank overdraft disposed of

Yoomedia Dating

Group Ltd
£000 £000
250
20
37
(3)
(142)
(88)
338
250
3
253

The cash flow statement includes the following amounts relating to discontinued operations

Operating activities
Investing activities

Net (decrease)/increase n cash and cash equivalents
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Finlaw 532 Ltd
£000 £000
15
42
(2)
(293)
(238)
238

2
2

2008 2006
£000 £000
(42) 41
(8) (17)
(50) 24
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13. Taxation

The tax assessed on the loss on ordinary activities for the period differs from the standard rate of tax of 30%
The differences are reconciled below

15 months ended Year ended

31 March 31 December

2008 2006

£000 £000

Loss on ordinary activities before taxation (20,563) (26,633)
Loss on ordwnary activittes muluplied by 30% (6,169) (7,950)
Effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes 4,523 7,493
Effect of non-taxable mmcome (175) -
Losses not recognised 1,821 497

Current period tax - -

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation provided in the financial statements 1s ml (2006 £ml) and the amounts not recogmsed are

as follows
15 months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December
2008 2006
Group £000 £000
Accelerated capital allowances 1,676 2,255
Other temporary differences - 222
Losses 15,830 18,630
17,506 21,107

Deferred tax asset

The deferred tax asset has not been recogmsed on the grounds that there 1s insufficient evidence at the balance
sheet date that 1t will be recoverable The asset would start to become potentially recoverable if, and to the
extent that, the Group were to generate taxable income i the future
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14.  Loss per share

15 months ended 31 March 2008 Year ended 31 December 2006
Continuing & Continuing &
Continuing Discontinued  discontinuzed  Continumg  Discontinued  discontinued
operations operations operations operations operations operations
(Loss)/profit for

penod (£20,692,000) £129,000 (£20,563,000) (£24,783,600) (£1,850,000} (£26,633,000)

Weighted average
number of shares 2,295,329 2,295,329 2,295,329 581,251 581,251 581,251
Basic & diluted EPS (£902) £0 06 (£8 96) (£42 64) (£3 18) (£45 82)

The weighted average number of shares 1n tssue 1n both the current and comparative periods have been adjusted
to reflect the share consohidation which took place on 25 February 2008, further details on the share
consolidation are given in note 25

The Company has 391,258 (2006 102,124) potentially dilutive ordinary shares bemng share options issued to
staff, share warrants and shares contracted to be 1ssued These have not been included 1n calculating the diluted
earnings per share as the effect 1s anti-dilutive

The deferred shares are not included 1n the earmngs per share or diluted earnings per share These shares
have no voting nghts and are non-convertible and therefore do not form part of the ordinary share capital
used for the loss per share calculanon
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15.

Intangible assets

Cost

At 1 January 2007

Acquired with subsidiary undertaking
Additions

Disposed wath discontinued operation
Foreign exchange

At 31 March 2008

Aceunmulated amortisation
At 1 January 2007
Provided during the period
Provision for impawrment
Foreign exchange

At 31 March 2008

Net book value
At 31 March 2008

At 31 December 2006

Cost

At 1 January 2006
Additions
Disposals

At 31 December 2006

Accumulated amortisation
At | January 2006
Provided during the period
Provision for impairment
D1sposals

At 31 December 2006

Net book value
At 31 December 2006

At 31 December 2005

Deferred Completed Total
development Technology Intangible
costs £000 assets Goodwill
£000 £000 £000
4,481 - 4,481 41,475
- 539 539 -
- - - 4,068
- - - (15)
- 28 28 -
4,481 567 5,048 45,528
4,481 - 4,481 15,954
- 10 10 -
- - - 12,000
4,481 10 4,491 27,954
- 557 557 17,574
- - - 25,521
Deferred
development
costs Goodwll
£000 £000
3,776 56,316
705 -
- (14,841)
4,481 41,475
1,851 12,336
2,630 -
- 16,427
- (12,809)
4,481 15,954
- 25,521
1,925 43,980
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15.

Intangible assets (continued)

Goodwill acquired 1n a business combination 1s allocated, at acquisinon, io the cash generating umits
(CGUs) that are expected to benefit from that business combination After recogmtion of impairment losses,
the carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated as follows

2008 2006

£000 £000

The Ganung Channel Ltd (“TGC”) 5,251 5,251
Digital Interactive Television Group Ltd (“DITG”) 8,255 20,255
Fresh Interactive Technologies S A {“Fresh™) 4,068 -
Yoomedia Dating Group Ltd (“YMDG") - 15
17,574 25,521

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently 1f there are mdicatons that goodwnll
mught be impared

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from value 1n use calculations The key assurmptions
for the value 1n use calculations are those regarding the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to
selling prices and direct costs during the period Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates
that reflect current market assessments of the tume value of money and the nisks specific to the CGUs The
growth rates are based on mdustry growth forecasts Changes in setling prices and direct costs are based on
past practices and expectations of funire changes in the market

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts denved from the most recent financial budgets approved by
management for the next four years and extrapolates cash flows for the following five years based on an
estimated growth rate of 2 5% Ttus rate does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
markets The rate used to discount the forecast pre-tax cash flows 15 20%

Following the impaument review the carrying value of goodwill for DITG was impawred by £12,000,000
No other impairment was considered to be approprate

There was an impawment of £16,427,000 m the year ended 31 December 2006 This consisted of
impauments of the carrying value of goodwill for TGC and DITG of £92 55 mullion and £1 22 million
respectively and full imparments in relation to YMDG, MMTYV Ltd, Viavision Ltd and GoPlay Ltd

The goodwill held by Yoomedia Dating Group Ltd was disposed of wath the sale of the company on 13
December 2007

Detalls on the calculation of the camying value of the goodwill for Fresh Interactive Technologies S A are
included 1n note 30
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16.  Property, plant and equipment

Cost

At 1 January 2007

Additions

Acquired through business combnations
Disposal through subsidiary disposal
Disposals

Foreign exchanpe

At 31 March 2008

Depreciation

At 1 January 2007

Provided during the period

Disposal through subsidiary disposal
Disposals

Foreign exchange

At 31 March 2008

Net book value
At 31 March 2008

At 31 December 2006

Office & Short-
computer leasehold
equipment improvements Total
£000 £000 £000
6,343 801 7,144
96 - 96
102 - 102
(17) - a7n
(2,449) (21) (2,470)
19 - 19
4,094 780 4,874
4,829 192 5,021
1,407 84 1,491
(5) - (5)
(2,449) 1) (2,470
15 - 15
3,797 255 4,052
297 525 822
1,514 609 2,123

Included m the net book value of property, plant and equipment are amounts of £N1l (2006 £558,000) held
under finance lease and hire purchase contracts Depreciation of £558,000 (2006 £151,000) has been

charged on these assets
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16.  Property, plant and eqmpment (continued)

Office & Short-
computer leasehold

equipment improvements Total
Cost £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2006 6,076 798 6,874
Additions 661 3 664
Disposals (394) - (394)
At 31 December 2006 6,343 801 7,144
Depreciation
At 1 January 2006 4024 113 4,137
Charge for the period 1,197 79 1,276
Disposals (392) - (392)
At 31 December 2006 4,829 192 5,021
Net book value
At 31 December 2006 1,514 60% 2,123
At 31 December 2005 2,052 685 2,737

17. Investments
£000

Cost
At 1 January 2007 & 31 March 2008 18
Amounts provided
At 1 January 2007 -
Dunng the period 18
At 31 March 2008 18
Net book value
At 31 March 2008 -
At 31 December 2006 18

Subsidiaries
A list of the sigmificant investments 1n subsidianes, including the name, country of mcorporation, proportion
of ownership interest 1s given in note viz to the Company’s separate financial statements
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18. Trade & other receivables

Trade recervables
Allowance for bad debts

Other recetvables
Prepayments and accrued income

Trade recervables

Net of allowances are held in the following currencies

Sterlimg
Euro

Total

2008 2006
£000 £000
1,343 2,563
(237) (696)
1,106 1,867
1,103 1,558
940 1,012
3,149 4,437
2008 2006
£000 £000
968 1,867
138 .
1,106 1,867

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses a credit approval process to assess the potential

custorner’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer

Included m the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with a carrying amount of £214,000 (2006
£402,000) which are past due at the reporting date The Group does not hold any collateral over these

balances The average age of these recervables 1s 97 days (2006 101 days)

Ageing of past due but not impaired recervables

30-60 days
60-90 days
90+ days

Total
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2008 2006
£000 £000
125 102
39 53
50 247
214 402




Mirada pl¢
Notes to conseolidated accounts
15 months ended 31 March 2008

18. Trade & other recervables (continued)

Movement 1 allowance for doubtful debts

Balance at beginming of penod
Utilised n peniod
Charge for period

Balance at the end of the penod

2008 2006
£000 £000
696 222
(578) (163)
119 637
237 696

In deterrmuning the recoverability of a trade receivable the Group considers any change m the credit quality

of the trade recervable from the date credit was imtiaily granted up to the reporting date

Ageing of impaired receivables

30-60 days
60-90 days
90-120 days

Total

2008 2006
£000 £000
- 16

4 202
233 478
237 696

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other recervables approximates their fair value

19.  Trade and other payables - current

Trade payables

Other payables

Other taxation and social security taxes
Accruals

Deferred income

Finance lease creditor

The Directers consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to their fair vatue

2008 2006
£000 £000
2,450 4,512
1,799 2,067
1,200 1,426
2,255 1,026

850 260

222 268
8,776 9,559

Trade creditors and accruals principally compnse amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing

costs The average credit period taken for trade purchases 1s 66 days (2006 131 days)
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20.

21.

Loans and borrowings

2008 2006
£000 £000
Bank overdrafis 234 -
The borrowings are repayable as follows
On demand or within one year 234 -
The above bank overdrafts are denomnated in Euros and are unsecured
2008 2006
Y Yo
The weighted average interest rates paid were as follows
Bank overdrafts 56 -
The Directors estimate the fair value of the Group’s borrowings as follows
Bank overdrafts 234 -

At 31 March 2008 the Group had undrawn commutted borrowing facilities of £201,000 (2006 £Nil)

Non-current liabihties

2008 2006

£000 £000

Convertible debt - 4,324
Other loans - 664
Finance lease creditor 19 241
Other payables 450 -
469 5,229

Deferred income - 2,271
469 7,500

The other loans of £664,000 as at 31 December 2006 relates to an on demand credat factlity granted to the
Group, the original credit facility advanced was for £2 4 mliion

The 1nterest rate payable on the loan equalled 5% Also attached to the loan were additional monthiy
charges accruing at £30,000 a month until matunty date These charges totalled £630,000 which 1s included
in current other payables at 31 March 2008 and were paid 1n full subsequent to the period end
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21.

Non-current liabilities (continued)
Convertible loan debt

Convertible loan debt balance recorded above has been determuned i line with IAS 32, as descrnibed more
fully under the accounting policies listed 1n note 2 IAS 32 requires the separate recognition of the debt and
the equity components of the amounts received with the equity components shown directly in equity
reserves

In May 2006 the Group 1ssued convertible loan debt with a par value of £6 million The convertible loans
could be converted, at the lenders’ option, into ordinary shares in the Company any time up to the matunty
date of May 2008 subject to a maximum conversion rate of £1,000,000 a week

The convertible loan holders were also entitled to share warrants Post the capital reorgamsation which took
place on 25 February 2008, these warrants entitle the holder to acquire 12,000 ordinary shares at a price of
£10 00 per share

The fair value of the hability component of the loans, incladed 1n non-current liabilies, was calculated
using a market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible loan The residual amount, representing the
value of the equity conversion option, 1s included in shareholders’ equity n other reserves (note 26) The
fair value of the hability component of the convertible loan at 31 December 2006 amounted to £4,148,000
The fair value 15 calculated using cash flows discounted at a rate based on the borrowings rate of 20%

The nominal value of the convertible loan debt and the movements during the period are shown below

£000

Fair value of convertible debt 1ssued on 11 May 2006 6,000
Less Equity component — Loan (716)
Less Equuty component — Share warrants (596)

Liability component on mmitial recognition 4,688

2008 2006

£000 £000

Liability component at beginmng of perrod/on mmitial recognition 4,148 4,688

Interest expense (note 11) 843 465
Interest accrued (302) (18D
Net loan advances in period 585 -
Conversion dunng pertod (5,550) (1,100}

Adjustment to hability component on early conversion 276 276

Liabality component at end of period - 4,148
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21

Non-current habilities (continued)

Borrowings are repayable as follows

Convertible debt
Between one and two years

Trade payables
On demand or within one year

Bank overdrafts
On demand or within one year

Other loans
Between one and two years

Other creditors
Between one and two years

Finance leases
On demand or within one year
Between one and two years

Total borrowings including finance leases
On demand or within one year
Between one and two years
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2008 2006
£000 £000
. 4,324

- 4,324
2,450 4,512
2,450 4,512
234 -
234 ;
- 664

- 664
450 -
450 .
222 268
19 241
241 509
2,906 4,780
469 5,229
3,375 10,009
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22.

23,

24.

Provisions for habilities

Employers’
National Insurance Pravisian for
on share options dilapidations Total
£000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2007 8 73 81
Taken to short term liabilities - (73) (73)
At 31 March 2008 8 - 8

Provision for dilapidations

The provision relates to the cost of returming the premuses at Great Portland Street to their ongmal state
These costs are expected to be incurred upon exit from the bullding Under the terms of the lease the earliest
that the Group can leave these prenuses 1s September 2008

Retirement benefit schemes
The Group operates defined contribution pension schemes The pension charge for the period represents
contributions payable to the Group to the schemes and amounted to £124,000 (2006 £137,000)

At 31 March 2008, contributions amounting to £8,000 (2006 £8,000) were payable and mcluded m other
habilities

Financial instruments

Capital risk management

The Group manages 1ts capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as gomng concerns
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the optumisation of the debt and equity balance The
capital structure of the Group consists of debt, whach includes the borrowings disclosed 1n note 21, cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to equuty holders of the parent, comprising 1ssued capital, reserves
and retained eamings as disclosed in note 26

Externally imposed capital requirement
The Group 1s not subject to externally imposed capital requirements

Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the critenia for recognition, the
basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recogmsed, 1n respect of each class
of financial asset, financial liabihty and equity instrument are disclosed n note 2 to the financial statements
Further details on critical accounting judgments and estunation uncertainty are detailed 1n note 4
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24.

Financial instruments (continued)

Categories of financial instruments

Carrying value
2008 2006
£000 £000
Financial assets
Loans and receivables
- Trade and other receivables 3,149 4,437
- Cash and cash equivalents 7,154 139
10,303 4,576
Financial liabilities
Financial habilities at amortised cost
- Trade and other payables 8,552 9291
- Borrowings due withm one year 456 268
- Borrowings due after one year 19 5,299
- Other payables due after one year 450 -
0,477 14,858

The Group manages hquidity risk by mamtamung adequate reserves, banking faciithes and reserve
borrowing facilities by continuously momtoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the matunity
profiles of financial assets and habilities As part of this momtoring the Group ensures that the financial
liabilities due to be paid can be met by existing cash and cash equivalents

Frnancial risk management objectives

The Group momtors and manages the financial nisks relating to the financial instruments held The principal
risks imnclude currency nisk (on financial assets and trade payables), credit nisk (on financial assets) and
mterest rate risk (on financial assets and borrowings) These nisks are discussed m further detail below

By virtue of the nature of the Group’s operations, 1t 1s generally not exposed to price nisk and, for reasons
documented 1n ‘Gearing rat1o” above, 1t 15 also not exposed greatly to hquidity risk

It 15 not Group policy to trade 1n financial instruments

Market risk

The Group’s activities expose 1t primarily to the financial nsks of changes in foreign cumrency exchange
rates and 1nterest rates The Group does not use forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge exchange rate
nisk
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24,

Financial instruments (continued}

Foreign currency risk management

Prior to the acquisition of Fresh on 25 February 2008, the Group was not exposed to sigmficant foreign
exchange nsk Since this date, the Group has undertaken certamn transactions denonunated in foreign
currencies Hence, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations anise Dunng the 15 months ended 31 March
2008 the Group has not utthsed forward exchange contracts to manage exchange rate exposures

The carrying amounts of the Group’s matenal foreign currency denomnated monetary assets and monetary
habilities at the reporting date are as follows

Liabilities Assets

2008 2006 2008 2006

£000 £000 £000 £000
Euro (593) - 5,112 -

Foreign currency sensitrvity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensiivity to a 10% increase and decrease 1n Sterhing against the
Euro The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding Euro denorminated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the penod end for a 10% change 1n the Euro/Sterling rate A positive number below indicates
an wncrease in profit and other equity where Sterling strengthens 10% against the relevant currency For a
10% weakenmng of Sterling against the relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite 1mpact on
the profit and other equity, and the balances below would be negative The sensiivities below are based on
the exchange rates at the balance sheet used to convert the asset or hability to sterling

Profit and loss impact

2008 2006
£000 £000
Euro 502 -

There are no material foreign exchange differences ansing on the retranslation of financial costs and
habilities accerdingly, no analysis of the sensitivities 1s presented

In management’s opiion, the sensitivity analysis 1s unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as
the year end exposure 1s higher than 1n the rest of the period Thus 1s due to the acquisition of Fresh which
took place on 25 February 2008 which led to a large cash balance being held denormunated n Euro as at 31
March 2008

Interest rate risk management
At 31 March 2008 the Group was exposed to imterest rate risk as the Group had bank overdrafts Iinked to
Euribor, and eamed interest on cash deposited at banks on a variable rate of interest

Prior to the 25 February 2008 refinancing the Group also had convertible debt and other loans payable,
however management do not consider that the Group was exposed to mnterest rate nisk in respect of these as
the interest rates payable were fixed

Given the fact that the majenity of the interest paid during the peniod related to borrowmgs charged at a

fixed rate of interest, neither interest rate swaps contracts nor forward interest rate contracts are used to
hedge any nsks ansing
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24,

Finaneial instruments (continued)

Credit risk management

Credit nsk refers to the nisk that a counterparty will default on 1ts contractual obligations resulting 1n
financial loss to the Group The Group faces exposure to credit nisk on its trade receivables and cash
equivalents

The nsk of financial loss ansing from defaults on trade receivables 1s mitigated by the Group using a credit
approval process to assess the potential customers’ credit quality and also estabhishes credit hmits by
customer The lirmts and credit scores attnbuted to customers 1s reviewed bi-annually however, the sales
ledger 1s reviewed at least monthly to ensure all receivables are recoverable

Please refer to note 18 for further details on trade receivables, mcluding analyses of bad debts, ageing and
profile by currency

The Group believes the credit risk on hquid funds, bemng cash and cash equivalents, to be limited because
the counterparties are banks with high-credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies
However, the concentration of credit nsk by counterparty does exceed 10% of the overall cash and cash
equivalents balance (bemg £715,000 at 31 March 2008 and £14,000 at 31 December 2006) 1n some cases
Grven the recent “credit crunch” the table below shows the balance of counterparties at the balance sheet
date 1n excess of 10% of the overall balance, together with the Standard and Poor’s credit rating symbols

31 March 2008 31 December 2006

% of overall Carrying % of overall Carrying
cash & cash amount cash & cash amount

Counterparty Location Rating equivalents £000 equivalents £000
Barclays Bank plc UK AA 329% 2,352 100% 139
Caja Castilla La Mancha Spam A- 66 5% 4,754 - -

Liquedity nisk management

Ultimate responsibility for hquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors At 31 December
2006 and for the majonity of the 15 months ended 31 March 2008 the hiquidity nsk was considered to be
high The refinancing which took place on 25 February 2008 addressed this problem and, as at the balance
sheet date, hquidity risk 15 considered to be low given the fact that the Group has a considerable cash and
cash equivalent balance and borrowings are limuted to bank overdrafts and finance leases
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25,

Share capital

In order for the refinancing to take place, on 25 February 2008 Mirada completed a reorgamsation of its
capital structure This reorgamsation consisted of two stages

First, each 1ssued ip Ordmary Share was subdivided into one Ordinary Share of ¢ 1p each and nine A
Deferred Shares of 0 1p each The A Deferred Shares have the same nghts as the existing 1p Deferred
Shares, that 1s no nght to vote, only limited nights to participate 1 dividends and only linuted deferred rights
on any return of capital

Second, every 1,000 0 lp Ordmmary Shares were consolidated mto 1 Ordinary Share of £1 00 each
Authonsed but umissued Ordnary Shares of 1p each were also consolidated, every 100 urussued Ordmary
Shares of 1p were consolidated into 1 Ordmary Share of £1 00 each

Immediately before the capital reorgamsation took place there were 912,242,053 1p Ordinary Shares in
1ssue  Immediately after the capital reorgamsation there were 912,242 £1 00 Ordinary Shares and
8,210,178,477 0 1p A Deferred Shares 1n 1ssue

A breakdown of the authonsed and 1ssued share capital in place as at 31 March 2008 1s as follows

2008 2008 2006 2006
No. £000 No. £7000
Authonsed

Ordinary shares of £1 each (2006 1p) 25,789,822 25,790 1,200,000,000 12,000
A Deferred shares of 0 1p each 8,210,178,477 8,210 - -
Deferred shares of 1p each 900,000,000 9,000 900,000,000 9,000
9,135,968,299 43,000 2,100,000,000 21,000

Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of £1 each (2006 1p) 19,805,485 19,805 696,964,276 6,970
A Deferred shares of O 1p each 8,210,178,477 8,2i0 - -
Deferred shares of 1p each 690,822,639 6,908 690,822,639 6,908
8,920,806,601 34,923 1,387,786,915 13,878

During the period and prior to the capital reorganisation the following share issues took place

Total Shares Nomuanal Share
Date of Notice Issued Yalue Premium
1. Placings:
21 February 2007 £762,500 67,777,777 £677,778 £84,722
26 July 2007 £375,000 37,500,000 £375,000 -
8 August 2007 £500,000 50,000,000 £500,000 -
£1,637,500 155,277,777 £1,552,778 £84,722
11. Debt conversion
9 May 2007 £250,000 25,000,000 £250,000 -
9 May 2007 £250,000 25,000,000 £250,000 -
16 May 2007 £100,000 10,000,000 £100,000 -

£600,000 60,000,000 £600,000 -
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25.  Share capital (continued)

Following the capital reorgarusation on 25 February 2008, the following share 1ssues took place

Total Shares Nominal Share
Description Issued Value Premuium
i. Capitalisation of directors fees:
- M Sinclair £250,000 228,061 £228,061 £21,939
- N MacDonald £22,500 20,525 £20,525 £1975
- J Swingewood £50,000 45,012 £45,612 £4,388
- JFenn £15,000 13,684 £13,684 £1,316
£337,500 307,882 £307,882 £29,618
i1. Debt conversion £5,211,403 4,754,063 £4,754,063 £457,340
ii1. Placing £8,371,875 7,637,178 £7,637,178 £734,697
1v. Acquistion of Fresh 17! £6,180,436 6,180,436 £6,180,436 -
v. Capitahisation of ereditor £15,000 13,684 £13,684 £1,316

! Acquisition of Fresh IT

Under the provisions of s131 of the Compames Act 1985, the premuum that arose on the shares 1ssued as
consideration i the acquisition of Fresh Interactive Technologies S A has been taken to the merger reserve n
the consohdated balance sheet No premum has been recognised mn the company balance sheet as the shares
have been recorded at normunal value

The mmd-market prnice of Mirada’s shares on 25 February 2008 equalled £1 40 meamng that the prermium
equalled £0 40 per share Therefore £2,472,174 has been taken to the merger reserve (£0 40 multiplied by the
consideration of 6,180,436 ordinary shares)

Further details on the acquisition of Fresh are provided n note 30
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25.  Share capital (continued)

Below 15 a reconcihation of the movements mn the ordinary share capital and share premium balances durmg the

15 months ending 31 March 2008

Description

Balance at 1 January 2007

Movements prior to capltal reorganisation

1 Placings less share 1ssue costs
11 Debt conversion

Balance at date of capital reorgamsation

Balance on completion of share reorgamsation

Movements post capital recrganisation
1 Capitalisation of directors fees

n Debt conversion

m Placing

v Acqusition of Fresh IT

v Capitalisation of creditor

Other

Reserves movement on conversion of loans

Balance at 31 March 2008

Shares to be 1ssued

Number of Nominal Share
shares Value Premium

£000 £000

696,964,276 6,970 78,479
155,277,777 1,553 24
60,000,000 600 -
912,242,053 9,123 78,503
912,242 912 78,503
307,882 308 30
4.754,063 4,754 457
7,637,178 7,637 735
6,180,436 6,180 -
13,684 14 1

- - 5

19,805,485 19,805 79,731

Shares to be 1ssued relates to deferred consideration in respect of the acquisition of Via Vision Limted, and
15 not payable until the completion balance sheet has been agreed A total of 1,700 ordinary shares which are
equity 1n nature are contracted to be 1ssued as deferred consideration for the purchase of Via Vision Limited
These have been shown as part of shareholders funds 1n “shares to be 1ssued”

V1ia Vision Limuted

Number of
shares

1,700

Value per
share

£16500

Total
£000
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26. Reserves and changes in equity

Equity
Capital component of Share Foreign Share Profit
redemption  convertible option exchange Merger premmum and loss
reserve debt  reserve reserve reserve  account  account
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2007 455 475 1,644 - - 78,479 (80,114)
Loss for the financial period - - - - - - {20,563)
Share based payment - - 205 - - - -
Movement 1n foreign exchange
Teserve - - - 260 - - -
Acqusttion of subsidiary - - - - 2472 - -
Release of equity component of
convertible debt on conversion - (473) - - - - 475
Adjustment to share premium
on conversion of debt - - - - - 5 -
Ansing on share 1ssue - - - - - 1,307 -
Share 1ssue costs - - - - - (60} -
At 31 March 2008 455 - 1,849 260 2,472 79,731  (100,202)
Equity
Capital component of Share  Foreign Share Profit
redemption  convertible option exchange Merger premuum  and loss
reserve debt  reserve reserve reserve  account  account
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2006 455 - 508 - - 75,521 (53,722)
Loss for the financial period - - - - - - (26,633)
Share based payment - - 1,136 - - - -
Arising on debt 1ss5ue - 716 - - - - -
Release of equity component of
convertible debt on conversion - (241) - - - - 241
Adjustment to share premium
on part conversion of debt - - - - - (276) -
Ansing on share 1ssue - - - - - 3,259 -
Share 1ssue costs - - - - - (25) -
At 31 December 2006 455 475 1,644 - - 78,479 (80,114)

Caputal redemption reserve

Thus reserve was created on the repurchase of deferred shares which occurred i 2000

Equity component of convertible debt

Thas reserve relates to the difference between the fair value of the convertible debt instrument as a whole and
the amount allocated to the debt component
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26. Reserves and changes in equity {continued)

Share option reserve

The fair value cost of equity-settled awards 1s recognised on a straight-line basis over the vesting penod,
based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of any non
market-based vesting conditions The corresponding credit 1s recorded mn equity mn the share option reserve

Foreign exchange reserve

This reserve relates to exchange differences ansing on the translation of the balance sheet of Fresh at the
closing rate and the translation of the income statement of Fresh at the average rate

Merger reserve

Under the provisions of s131 of the Compantes Act 1985, the premuum that arose on the shares 1ssued as
consideration 1n the acquisition of Fresh Interactive Technologies S A has been taken to the merger reserve

60




Mirada plc
Notes to consolidated accounts
15 months ended 31 March 2008

27.

Share based payments

Egquity settled share option scheme

The Company has granted share options to emmployees and Directors through approved and unapproved
share option schemes The exercise of options for all options granted during the penod under review 1s
subject to a performance criterion being satisfied The exercise of options granted historically 1s not subject
to any performance criterion If the options remain unexercised after a period of ten years from the date of
grant the options expire The options are forferted 1f the employee leaves the Group before the options vest

Share warrants
In the past the Company has granted share warrants to third parties These warrants are not subject to
perfermance criteria and vest immediately

Share reorganisation

As outhned 1n note 25 above, on 25 February 2008 the Company completed a share reorganisation Ail
share options and warrants 1n 1ssue at that date were subject to the same reorgansation process as the 1ssued
share capital This has led to the exercise price of the share options and warrants being increased by a
multiple of 1,000 and the number of shares that the option/warrant holder 1s entitled to bemg divided by
1,000

In order to provide a realistic companson of the share options and warrants outstanding amounts included
for 31 December 2006 1n the tables below have been adjusted to take the share conselidation into account

IFRS2 - Share based payment
In accordance with IFRS 2 the Group has elected not to apply IFRS 2 to options granted on or before 7
November 2002 or to options which had vested by 1 January 2006

Details of the share options outstanding during the period for options 1ssued since 7 November 2002 are as
follows

15 months ended 31 March 2008 Year ended 31 December 2006

Weighted Weighted

No.of No.of average No.of No.of average

share share  exercise share share  exercise

warrants options price (£) warrants options price (£)

Outstanding at the begmmmng of period 54,666 47,459 45 40 - 32,208 146 03
Granted dunng period - 300,000 1 096 54,666 25,550 2293
Forfeited duning penod - (12,567 3743 - {9,511) 199 59
Exercised during peniod - - - - (788) 1000
Outstanding at the end of the penod 54,666 334,892 11 54 54,666 47459 45 40
Exercisable at the end of the penod 54,666 23,587 50 57 54,666 21,909 54 38

No share options or share warrants have expired during the period

The options outstanding at 31 March 2008 had a weighted average remainng contractual life of 9 6 years
(2006 8 8 years)

On 25 February 2008 300,000 share options were granted at an exercise price of £1 0962 The estimated fair
value of the share options granted on that date 15 £278,000 (options granted dunng 2006 £531,000)

For the 15 months ended 31 March 2008 the Group has recogmsed a total expense of £205,000 (2006,
£488,000) related to equity-settled share-based payment transactions
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27.  Share based payments (continued)

IFRS2 - Share based payment (continued)

The estimated fair values for deterrumng thes charge were calculated vsing the Black-Scholes option pricing
model This produces a fair value for each grant of options made and the fair value 15 then charged over the
vesting period, which 1s three years For this reason the charge for the 15 months ended 31 March 2008 1s
determuned by any grants made, tn our case, since 22 December 2004 The mnputs mto the model at each

grant date since then were as follows
Date of grant

Share price at date of grant (in £5)
Exercise price

Expected volatihity

Expected life (years)

Risk-free rate

Expected dividend yield

Assumptions tn calculating farr value

22 Dec 04

017
0061
70%

5

4 53%

22 Dec 04

017
015
70%

5
453%

28 Aug 06

00138
0025
70%

2

4 53%

22 Dec 06

00185
00185
80%

S
520%

25 Feb 08

10962
10962
121%
5
520%

The expected volatility was determined by calculating the histenical volatlity of the Company’s share price
over the five years preceding the grant of the option Five years was selected as thus 1s the expected term of

the options

The nisk free rate 1s the rate of interest obtainable from government securtties (1 e Gilts 1n the UK) over the

expected life of the option

The expected dividend yield 1s based on the historic dividend yield — 1€ divadends paid in the twelve
months prior to grant calculated as a percentage of the share price on the date of grant

The exercise of the share options granted durning the 15 months ended 31 March 2008 are subject to
performance cnteria being met, this 1s for a fixed 3 year period

Share options granted prior to 7 November 2002

The movements during the period are as follows

Period of options

28 January 2000 — 28 January 2010
20 June 2000 — 20 June 2010

5 Apni 2002 — 5 Apnl 2012

5 Apni 2002 - 5 April 2012

As at

1 January

2007

1,043
5
1,000
60

62

Exercised
during
period

Lapsed
during
period

As at 31
March
2008

1,043

1,000
60

Option
Price £

100 00
680 00
100 00

60 00
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28.  Operating lease arrangements

2008 2006
£000 £000
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recogmised as an expense mn the
perod 581 866

At the balance sheet date, the Group had outstanding commutments for future nmummum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows

2008 2006
£000 £000
Within one year 377 372
In second to fifth years inclusive 909 978
After five years 274 543
1,560 1,893

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for its office properties Leases of
buildings are subject to rent reviews at specified intervals and provide for the lessee to pay all msurance,
maintenance and repair costs
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29.

Notes supporting cash flow statement

Cash and cash equivalents compnise

Cash available on demand
Overdrafis

Net cash mcrease 1n cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginming of peniod

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Sigmficant non-cash transactions are follows

Invesung activities
Equity consideration for business combmation

Fmancing activities

Convertible loans converted into equity
Debt converted to equaty

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are held m the following currencies

Sterling
Euro

Total

2008 2006
£000 £000
7,154 139
(234) -
6,920 139
6,781 3,510
139 (3,371)
6,920 139
2008 2006
£000 £000
8,653 1,250
5,811 1,101
338 500
6,149 1,601
2008 2006
£000 £000
2,352 139
4,802 ;
7,154 139

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits with an original

matunty of three months or less The carryimng amount of these assets approximates their fair value
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30.

31.

Acquisitions during the period

On 25 February 2008 the Group acquired 100% of the voting equity mnstruments of Fresh Interactive
Technologies S A which 15 a leading provider of mteractive digital television solutions to the Spamsh and
Hispanic markets

Details of the fair value of 1dentifiable assets and habilities acquired, purchase consideration and goodwall
are as follows

Fair value Fair value

Book value adjustments to Group
£000 £000 £000
Provisional value of fair assets acquired
Property, plant and equipment 102 - 102
Completed technology 324 215 539
Receivables 381 - 381
Cash 4555 - 4,330
Bank overdrafts (225)
Payables (325) - (325)
4,812 215 5,027
Consideration pard
6,180,436 Ordinary Shares of £1 each 8,653
Costs of acquisition 442
9,095
Goodwill (note 15) 4,068

The fair value of the shares 1ssued was determuned by reference to their quoted market price of £1 40 at the
date of acquisition The fair values of receivables and payables are the same as the IFRS carrying amounts
immediately prior to the acquisttion

One category of mtangible assets was 1dentified 1n relatton to completed technology which consisted of
capitalised internal development costs 1n relation to Fresh’s interactive television software The fair value of
the intangible was valued at the estimated cost of replacing Fresh’s internally generated software and IP

The man factors leading to a recogmition of goodwill are, the presence of certain mtangible assets such as
the assembled workforce of the acquired entity which do not qualify for separate recogmtion, synergistic
cost savings and the opportumty for the group to market its vaniety of products m the Spamish and Hispamic
markets

Had the acquisition of Fresh taken place on 1 January 2007 rather than 25 February 2008 the Group would
have recorded extra revenue of £1 6 mliion and an increase n the loss for the financial period of £160,000

Events after the balance sheet date

OCn 23 Apni 2008, as confirmed by an Order of the High Courts of Justice, Mirada plc cancelled its share
premuum account and 1ts capital redemption reserves against its profit and loss reserve

65




Mirada plc
Notes to consolidated accounts
15 months ended 31 March 2008

32.  First ime adoption of International Financial reporting Standards (IFRS)

The princtpal changes to the Group's reported financial information under UK GAAP ansing from the adoption of
IFRS are as a result of the following

¢  the requirement not to amortise goodwill but to conduct annual 1mpairment reviews, and
s the requirement that revenues from fixed odds gamming must no longer be shown gross of customer winnings

As part of the work performed for the transition to adopt IFRS, Mirada also conducted a review of the carrying
values of major assets and lhiabihities held 1n the balance sheet and dunng this process identified nusstatements 1
these carrying values Reconciliahions and explanatory notes on how the transition to IFRS and the UK GAAP
adjustments have affected profit and net assets previously reported under UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (UK GAAP") are given below

IFRS 1 exemptions

IFRS 1, ‘First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards’ sets out the procedures that the Group
must follow when 1t adopts IFRS for the first tume as the basis for prepanng its consolidated financial statements
This standard provides a number of optional exceptions to this general principle The most sigmficant of these for
the Group relates to buswness combinations that occurred before the opening IFRS balance sheet date (IFRS 3,
‘Business Combinations’) The Group has elected not to apply IFRS 3 retrospectively to business combinations
prior to 1 January 2006
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32, First time adoption of International Financial reporting Standards (continued)

Balance sheet reconcthation as at 1 January 2006

UK GAAP a b c d f g IFRS
£°000 £°000 £'000 £°000 £2000 £000 £7000 £°000
Goodwill 43,980 43,980
Intangible assets 1,925 1,925
Property, plant & equipment 2,137 2,737
Investments 13 13
Non-current assets 48,655 - - - - - - 48,655
Trade & other receivables 7,634 (2,350) 5,284
Cash & cash equivalents 117 117
Current assets 7,751 - - - - (2,350) - 5,401
Trade & other payables 11,588 11,588
Short term borrowings 3,488 3,488
Provisions for habilities & charges - 67 67
Current habilities 15,076 - 67 - - - - 15,143
Net current habilities (7,325) - (67) - - {2,350) - (9,742)
Total assets less current habihties 41,330 - ((Y))] - - {2,350) - 38,913
Non current habilities
Interest bearings loans & borrowings i,000 1,000
Long term provisions 1,834  {1,078) 756
Other non current habilities 1,697 1,697
Total non-current habilihes 4,531 {(1,078) - - - - - 3,453
Net assets 36,799 1,078 (67} - - (2,350) - 35,460
Capital & reserves attributable to
equity holders of the company
Issued caputal 12,060 12,060
Shares to be 1ssued 281 281
Share premium 75,521 75,521
Other reserves 455 508 963
Retained earnings {51,875) 570 ©7) (2,350) (53,722)
36,442 1,078 67 - - (2,350) - 35,103
Minority interest 357 357
Total equity 36,799 1,078 67 - - (2,350) - 35,460

The adjustments made to the balance sheet as at 1 January 2006 previously reported under UK GAAP are shown 1n
columns a to g above Details of these adjustments are given below
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32. First time adoption of International Finanecial reporting Standards (continued)

Balance sheet reconciliation as at 31 December 2006

UK GAAP a b € d f g 1FRS

£°000 £°000 £°000 £°000 £2000 £°000 £°000 £°000
Goodwll 24,768 753 25,521
Intangible assets 1,378 (1,378) -
Property, plant & equipment 2,123 2,123
Investments 18 18
Non-current assets 28,287 - - 753 - - {1,378) 27,662
Trade & other recervables 6,591 (2,154) 4,437
Cash & cash equivalents 139 139
Current assets 6,730 - - - - (2,154) - 4,576
Trade & other payables 9,536 9,536
Provisions for liabilihes & charges - 23 23
Current habilsties 9,536 - 23 - - - - 9,559
Net current llabilities (2,806) - (23) - - (2,1549) - (4,983)
Total assets less current habilities 25,481 - 23 753 - (2,154 {1,378) 22,679
Non current habilities
Interest bearings loans & borrowings 5678 (449) 5,229
Long term provisions 1,210 (1,129) 81
Other non current hiabilities 2,271 2,271
Total non-current Liabilities 9,159 (1,129) - - (449} - - 7,581
Net assets 16,322 1,129 (23) 753 449  (2,154) (1,378) 15,098
Capuital & reserves attributable to
equity holders of the company
Issued capital 13,878 13,878
Shares to be 1ssued 281 281
Share premium 78,755 (276) 78,479
Other reserves 759 1,047 768 2,574
Retaned earnings (77,351} 82 (23) 753 (43) (2,154 (1,378 (80,114)

16,322 1,129 23 753 449  (2,154) (1,378) 15,098
Minority interest - -
Total equity 16,322 1,129 23 753 449 (2,154) (1,378) 15,098

The adjustments made to the balance sheet as at 31 December 2006 previously reported under UK GAAP are
shown 1n columns a to g above Details of these adjustments are given below
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32. First time adoption of International Financial reporting Standards (continued)

Income statement reconciliation for the year ended 31 December 2006

UK GAAP a b c d € f g IFRS
£000 £°000 £000 £°000 £°000 £°000 £'000 £°000 £7000
Revenue 62,586 (46,004) 196 16,778
Cost of sales (54,171) 43,545 {10,626)
Gross profit 8,415 - - - - - - 196 6,152
Net gaming income - 2,459 2,459
Depreciation (1,276) { 1,276)
Amortisation of deferred development
costs (1,252) (1,378) (2,630)
Amortisation of goodwall ( 2,668) 2,668 -
Impairment of goodwall {14,512} (1,915) (16,427)
Share based payment charge - (488) ( 488)
Restructuring costs ( 2,988) {2,988)
Other adrninistrative expenses (9,939} 44 (9,895)
Total adiminmistrative costs (32,635) (488) 44 753 - - (1,378) - (33,704)
Operating loss (24,220) (488) 44 753 - - (1,378) 196 (25,093)
Finance income 3 3
Finance expense (1,259) (284) (1,543)
Loss on before taxation (25,476} (488) 44 753 (284) - (1,378) 196 (26,633)
Taxation - -
Loss for finanaal year (25,476) (488) 44 753 (284) - (1,378) 19¢ (26,633)

The adjustments made to the income statement for the year ended 31 December 2006 previously reported under UK
GAAP are shown 1n columns a to g above Details of these adjustments are given below
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32.  First time adoption of International Financial reporting Standards (continued)

Adjustments

Explanations of the IFRS adjustments and prior year UK GAAP adjustments made to the previously reported
wncome statement and balance sheets are as follows

{a) Share based payments

As at 1 January 2006 the company held a provision of £862,000 1n relatton to a charge on unapproved share options
under UITF 17 IFRS 2 requires the company to charge the income statement wath the fair value of the options
1ssued and this charge 1s spread over the vesting period of the option {which 1s typically 2 years), the company has
calculated the fair value using the Black-Scholes method The result of the adjustments to reflect the change from
UITF 17 to IFRS 2 15 an increase 1 net assets of £1,129,000 as at 31 December 2006 and an increase 1n the loss for
the year ended 31 December 2006 of £488,000

(b) Employee Benefits*

Under IAS 19, short-term benefits such as annual leave and sick leave, falling due within 12 months are required to
be accrued at nomunal value A review of unused holiday pay at each period end (including intenim) and any other
short term compensated absences (1e sick leave) has resulted in a net decrease 1n net assets as at 31 December
2006 of £23,000 and an increase 1n retained profit for the year ended 31 December 2006 of £44,000 '

{¢) Goodwill and Intangible Assets*

IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' requires that, when businesses are acquired, any intangible assets acquired with the
business are valued separately and capitalised as an intangible asset Any residual difference between the
consideration paid or payable and the net far value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent habilities
acquired 1s recognised as goodwill IFRS 3 also requires that goodwill 1s not amortised but 1s instead subject to an
annual impairment review, whereas mtangible assets are amortised over their useful lives As the Group has elected
not to apply IFRS 3 retrospectively to business combinations prior to 1 January 2006 under IFRS, the goodwall
ansing from combinations before that date therefore remain at the amount shown within goodwill under UK GAAP
at 1 January 2006 so there 1s no impact from those acquusitions on the 2006 opening balance sheet

As IFRS 3 requires that goodwill 15 not amortised, amounts previously amortised in the 31 December 2006 accounts
under UK GAAP of £2,668,000 have been wrntien back Subject to IAS 36 the directors have wdentified cash
generating units within the business and reviewed for any possible impamrment that may be required Following this
review a goodwill amount of £1,915,000 was umpaired in the year ended 31 December 2006 The net result of these
two adjustments 1s an increase in net assets as at 31 December 2006 of £753,000

(d) Financial Instruments

Under IAS 32, financial instruments are classified as financial liabilihes and equity instruments Compound
financial mstruments may contain both a liabihity and an equity component Mirada’s convertible debt 1n the balance
sheet as at 31 December 2006 has been split into debt and equity components using fair value accounting principles

Interest 15 calculated by applymng a rate that would have been payable on a similar debt without any equity
conversion option, the rate used equalled 20% The effect of this adjustment has been an increase 1n net assets of
£449,0600 as at 31 December 2006 and an increase in the interest charge 1w the year ended 31 December 2006 of
£284,000

{e) Ganmung revenues*

Under IAS 39 revenues from fixed odds garming must no longer be shown gross of customer winnings The result 1s
that the revenue and cost of sales recognised 1n the income statement for the year ended 31 December 2006 have
been reduced by £43 5 nulhon
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32. First time adoption of International Financial reporting Standards (continued}

Adjustments (continued)
(f) Write off of accrued mncome

As at 1 January 2006 the Group held accrued mcome on the balance sheet 1n relation to income generated from a
channel sale and an associated mumimurm revenue guarantee contract In discussion with the auditors, management
have reviewed the accounting treatment previously adopted and have concluded that the mncome statement and
balance sheet were musstated A prior year adjustment has been made to write off the accrued income as at 1
January 2006 The effect of thus adjustment 1s to decrease net assets as at 1 January 2006 by £2,350,000 and as at
31 December 2006 by £2,154,000, and to increase the revenue recogmised 1 the income statement for the year
ended 31 December 2006 by £196,000

(g) Write off of intangibles assets

Under IFRS 3 1n order for development costs to be capitalised certan specific criteria has to be met In addition
only direct costs of development such as the salary costs of the development staff, are allowed to be capitalised
These requirements are very simlar to the requirements of UK GAAP The result of this review was that 1n many
cases not all the critena were met and that the overhead capitalised included non staff overhead The effect of this
15 that intangible assets with a carrying value of £1,378,000 were fully impaired at 31 December 2006

* The directors have distinguished the IFRS conversion adjustments with a *
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31 December

31 March 2006
2008 {as restated)
Notes £000 £000
Goodwill v - 57
Tangible fixed assets vi 2 24
Investments vii 20,287 29,651
Fixed assets 20,289 29,732
Debtors vl 4,745 664
Cash at bank and in hand 2,237 10
Current assets 6,982 674
Total assets 27,271 30,400
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year X (6,480) (2,101)
Net current assets/(habilities) 502 {1,427)
Total assets less current liabilities 20,791 28,305
Interest bearing loans and borrowings X - (4,988)
Other non-current hiabilities X (450) -
Accruals & deferred ncome X - (2,191)
Creditors — amounts falling due in more than one year (450) (7,179
Provisions for habilities x1 (8) (81)
Total creditors {6,938) {9,361)
Net assets 20,333 21,044
Capital and reserves
Issued capttal 34,924 13,878
Shares to be 1ssued 281 281
Share preminm xi 79,731 78,479
QOther reserves X1 2,304 2,573
Retamned earmngs X1 (96,967) (74,168)
Shareholders’ funds xv1 20,333 21,044

These financial statements were approved and authorised for 1ssue on 29 July 2008

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

Michael Sinclar

Chairman Chtef Executive Officer
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Accounting policies

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost net of depreciation and any provision for impawment Depreciation 1s
calculated to wnte off the cost of fixed assets, less their estimated residual values, on a straight-line basis
over the expected useful economic lives of the assets concerned The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are

Office & computer equipment 33%
Short-leasehold improvements 10%

Deferred taxation

The charge for taxation 15 based on the toss for the year and takes mto account taxation deferred because of
timmg differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes

Deferred tax 1s recogmsed 1n respect of all tuming differences that have oniginated but not reversed at the
balance sheet date where transactions or events that result 1n an obligation to pay more, or a night to pay less,
tax 1n the future have occurred at the balance sheet date, except that deferred tax assets are recogmsed only
to the extent that the Directors consider that 1t 1s more likely than not that there will be suitable taxable
profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timung cifferences can be deducted

Deferred tax 1s measured on a non-discounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply n the peniods
m which tuming differences reverse, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date

Foreign currencies

Assets and habilities 1n foreign currencies are translated into sterling at rates of exchange ruling at the end of
the financial year Transactions i foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rate of exchange ruling
at the date of the transaction Exchange differences on retranslation of assets and lhiabilities are taken to the
profit and loss account 1n the year in which they arise

Leases

Assets held under finance leases and other simlar contracts, which confer rights and obligations simlar to
those attached to owned assets, are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are depreciated over the shorter of
the lease terms and their useful lives The capital elements of future lease obligations are recorded as
liabilities, while the interest elements are charged to the profit and loss account over the period of the leases
to produce a constant rate of charge on the balance of capital repayments outstanding Hire purchase
transactions are dealt with simmlarly, except that assets are depreciated over their useful lives

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a strarght-line basis over the lease term, even if the payments
are not made on such a basis Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to sign an operating lease are
simularly spread on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where the period to the review date on
which the rent 1s first expected to be adjusted to the prevailing market rate 15 shorter than the full lease term,
in whuch case the shorter period 15 used
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Accounting policies (continued)

Convertible debt

Convertible debt 1s regarded as a compound instrument, consisting of a hability component and an equity
component At the date of 1ssue, the fair value of the hability component 1s esthmated using the prevailing
market interest rate for sitmilar non-convertible debt The difference between the proceeds of 1ssue of the
convertible loan notes and the fair value assigned to the lhiability component, representing the embedded
option to convert the liability into equuty of the Company, 1s included 1n equity

Issue costs are apportioned between the hability and equity components of the convertible loan notes based
on therr relative carrying amounts at the date of 1ssue The portion relating to the equity component 1s
charged directly against equity

The 1nterest expense on the liability component ts calculated by applying the prevailing market mterest rate
for sumilar non-convertible debt to the hability component of the instrument The difference between this
amount and the interest paid 15 added to the carryang amount of the convertible loan note

Bank borrowings

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds recerved, net of direct 1ssue costs
Finance charges, including premuums payable on settlement or redemption and direct 1ssue costs, are
accounted for on an accrual basis 1n profit or loss account using the effective interest method and are added
to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the period mn which they
arise

Financial instruments

The Company’s financial mstruments compnse cash and liquid resources together with debtors and creditors
that anse directly from 1ts operations

The Company does not enter nto derivative or hedging transactions It has been, throughout the year under
review, the Company's policy that no trading m financial instruments shall be undertaken The Company
places the majority of its cash on mterest-bearing, short-term and instant-access deposit Funds are
transferred to and from deposit on a daily basis The Company’s objective 15 to mumimise the risk of loss to
the Company by limiting the Company’s credit exposure to quality nstitutions mamtaining a very high credit
rating The main nsk arising from the Company’s financial instruments 1s interest rate risk

The Company’s policy n relation to interest rate risk 1s to momtor short and medium-term mterest rates and
to place cash on deposit for periods that optimise the amount of interest earned, while maintaining access to
sufficient funds to meet day-to-day cash requirements

Movements in the exchange rates can affect the Company’s balance sheet The magnitude of this nsk 1s not
presently sigmificant to the Company and therefore ne specific measures are currently undertaken to manage
this nisk
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Prior period adjustments

As stated in the Chamrman’s Statement and note 32, First Time Adoption of International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS™), as part of the work performed for the transition to adopt IFRS, Mirada also
conducted a review of the carrying values of major assets and liabilities held 1n the balance sheet and dunng
thus process 1dentified adjustments to be made The reasons for these adjustments are described 1n note 32,
Fist Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), the impact of these
adjustments on the balance sheet as at 31 December 2006 previously reported are outlined below

- Share based payments

The result of the adjustments 15 an mcrease n net assets of £1,129,000 as at 31 December 2006 and an
increase 1n the loss for the year ended 31 December 2006 of £488,000

- Fimancial Instruments

The effect of this adjustment has been an increase 1n net assets of £449,000 as at 31 December 2006 and an
increase 1n the interest charge 1n the year ended 31 December 2006 of £284,000

- Write off of accrued income

The effect of this adjustment 15 to decrease net assets as at 31 December 2006 by £2,154,000, and to
mcrease the revenue recognised i the profit and loss account for the year ended 31 December 2006 by
£196,000

- Write off of intangibles assets

The effect of thus adjustment 1s that intangible assets with a carrying value of £1,378,000 were fully
mmparred at 31 December 2006

Staff costs and employee information

15 months ended Year ended

31 March 31 December

2008 2006

£000 £000

Wages and salaries 1,788 1,792
Socral securnity costs 149 129
Other pension costs 78 67
Staff costs 2,015 1,988

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme for certain employees and two directors (2006 2
directors) The outstanding amount of pension contributions accnung at the pened end was £8,000 (2006
£8,000)

75




Mirada plc
Notes to Company accounts
15 months ended 31 March 2008

111.

v,

Staff costs and employee Information

The average number of persons, including executive directors, employed by the Company during the pertod
was

15 months ended Year ended
31 March 31 December
2008 2006

By activity
Office and management 15 19
Sales and marketing 4 4
19 23

Loss attributable to members of the parent company

As permutted by section 230 of the Compames Act 1985 the Company has elected not to present its own
profit and loss account for the period The Company reported a loss after tax for the financial period ended
31 March 2008 of £23 2 mullion (2006 £31 8 million)

Intangible assets

Goodwill
£000

Cost
At 1 January 2007 & 31 March 2008 174
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2007 117
Provision for impairment 57
At 31 March 2008 174
Net book value
At 31 March 2008 -

At 31 December 2006 57
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Y1

vii.

Tangible fixed assets

Cost

At 1 January 2007
Additions

At 31 March 2008

Depreciation

At 1 January 2007
Provided during the period
At 31 March 2008

Net book value
At 31 March 2008

At 31 December 2006

Investments

Cost or valuation
At 1 Janvary 2007
Additions
Disposals*

At 31 March 2008
Amounts provided

At | January 2007
Provided during the period
At 31 March 2008

Net book value
At 31 March 2008

At 31 December 2006

*Sale of Yoomedia Dating Group Lid
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Office & Short-
computer leasehold
equipment improvements Total
£000 £000 £000
1,566 38 1,604
5 - 5
1,571 38 1,609
1,548 32 1,580
21 6 27
1,569 38 1,607
2 - 2
18 6 24
£000
38,705
7,217
(1,098)
44,824
9,054
15,483
24,537
20,287
29,651
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Y.

Investments (continued)

Details of the investments m which the Company holds 20% or more of the nomunal value of any class of

share capital are as follows

Name of company

MieTV Limuted
Fancy a Flutter Limuted
Whoosh Group Limuted

Dhgital Interactive

Television Group Limuted

Digital Interactive Studio
Centre Limuted

Dagatal Television
Production Company
Limited

Digital Impact (UK)
Limted

Go Interactive TV Limited

Digital Interactive
Broadband Services
Linuted

Interactive Television
Infrastructure Lirmted

The Gaming Channel
Lumted

The Garmung Channel
Bookmakers Lumited

Via Vision Limited

Chelirading 418 Limited

YooMedia Mobile Limited

Fresh Interactive
Technologies S A

Honeycone Limited

Broadband TV Group
Limuted

Holding
Ordmary shares

Ordmary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordimary shares

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordmary shares
Ordinary Shares
Ordinary Shares
Ordinary Shares
Ordmary Shares
Ordmary Shares

Ordinary Shares

shares held ncorporation Nature of business

Proportion

of voting

rights and Country of
100% UK
100% UK
100% UK
100% UK
100% UK
100% UK
100% UK
100% UK
100% UK
100% UK
100% UK
100% UK
100% UK
100% UK
100% UK
100% Span
50% UK
50% UK
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Interactive TV services
Interactive TV services
Mobule telephone
technology provider
Interactive TV services

Interactive TV services

Interactive TV services

Interactive TV services
Interactive TV services
Interactive TV services
Interactive TV services
Gaming

Gamung

Interactive TV services
Dormant

Dormant

Interactive TV services
Mobile telephone

technology provider
Broadband TV services




Mirada ple
Notes to Company accounts
15 months ended 31 March 2008

vin. Debtors
2008 2006
£000 £000
Trade debtors 26 75
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 4,041 -
Accrued income 6 19
Other debtors 419 360
Prepayments 253 210
4,745 664

1X.

At 31 December 2006 other debtors included £52,022 relating to rent deposits which are recoverable 1n

more than one year

Creditors — amounts falling due within one year

2008 2006

£000 £000

Trade creditors 867 1,010
Amounts owed to group undertakings 2,062 -
Accruals and deferred income 1,351 579
Other taxation and social security 756 370
Other creditors 1,429 142
Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts 15 -
6,480 2,101

X. Creditors - amounts falling due in more than one year

2008 2006

£000 £000

Convertible debt - 4,324
Other loans - 664
Other creditors 450 -
450 4,988

Deferred mcome - 2,191
450 7,179
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Mirada plc
Notes to Company accounts
15 months ended 31 March 2008

X. Creditors - amounts falling dute in more than one year (continued)

Borrowngs are repayable as follows

Convertible debt
Between one and two years

Other loans
Between one and two years

Other creditors
Between one and two years

Finance leases
On demand or within one year
Between one and two years

Total borrowings including finance leases
On demand or within one year
Between one and two years

X1 Provisions for Liabilities

At 1 January 2007
Taken to short term habilities

2008 2006
£000 £000
- 4,324
- 4,324
- 664
- 664
450 -
450 -
15 -
15 -
15 -
450 4,988
465 4,988
Employers’
Naticonal Insurance Provision for
on share options dilapidations Total
£000 £000 £000
8 73 81
- (73) (73)
8 - 8

At 31 March 2008
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Mirada plc

Notes to Company accounts
15 months ended 31 March 2008

xii. Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation provided 1n the financial statements 1s il (2006

as follows

Accelerated capital allowances

Other timung differences
Losses

Deferred tax asset

2008 2006
£000 £000
304 319

- 222
6,079 8,399
6,383 8,940

£ml) and the amounts not recogmsed are

The deferred tax asset has not been recogmsed on the grounds that there 1s insufficient evidence at the
balance sheet date that 1t will be recoverable The asset would start to become potentially recoverable if, and
to the extent that, the Group were to generate taxable income 1n the future

xi. Reserves

At 1 January 2007

Loss for the financial perniod
Share based payment

Ansing on debt 1ssue

Release of equity component of
convertible debt on conversion
Adjustment to share premum on
part conversion of debt

Arnising on share 1ssue

Share 1ssue costs

At 31 March 2008

Equity
Capital component of Share Profit
redemption convertible Share option premum and loss
reserve debt reserve account account
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
435 475 1,644 78,479 (74,168)
- - - - (23,214)
- - 205 - -
- (475) - - 475
- - - 5 -
- - - 1,307 -
- . - (60) -
455 - 1,849 79,731 (96,907)
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Mirada plc
Notes to Company accounts
15 months ended 31 March 2008

Xiv.

Xxv.

xvi

Reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds

2008 2006

£000 £000
Loss for the peniod (23,214) (31,827)
New shares 1ssued 22,293 5,052
Equity component of convertible debt - 716
Movement 1n share prermum arising on conversion of convertible loan 5 (276)
Additions to capital reserves re share option charge 205 1,135
Net increase/(reduction) i shareholders’ funds (711) (25,200)
Opening shareholders’ funds 21,044 46,244
Closing shareholders” funds 20,333 21,044

Financial comnutments

At 31 March 2008 the Company had annual commutments under non-cancellable operating leases expiring as
follows

Buildings
2008 2006
£000 £000
Within one year 118 500

Leases of buildings are subject to rent reviews at specified mntervals and provide for the lessec to pay all
msurance, maintenance and repair costs

Post balance sheet events

On 23 Apnl 2008, as confirmed by an Order of the High Courts of Justice, Mirada ple cancelled 1ts share
prermuum account and 1ts capital redemption reserves against its profit and loss reserve
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